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LT.') I Lane Transit District 

April 27, 2017 

Board of Directors 
Lane Transit District 
3500 E 17th Avenue 
Eugene, OR 97403 

It is our pleasure to submit to you the "Comprehensive Annual Financial Report" (CAFR) 
of the Lane Transit District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. 

Oregon Statutes require that Lane Transit District publish, within six months of the close 
of each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements presented in conformance 
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States of America 
and audited in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America by a firm of licensed, certified public accountants. This year's CAFR 
is being submitted with an extension granted to exceed the normal six-month period. 

The accuracy of the District's financial statements and the completeness and fairness of 
their presentation is the responsibility of District management. The District maintains a 
system of internal accounting controls designed to provide a reasonable assurance that 
assets are safeguarded against loss or unauthorized use and that financial records can 
be relied upon to produce financial statements in accordance with GAAP. The concept 
of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of maintaining the system of internal 
accounting controls should not exceed benefits likely to be derived. 

The District's financial statements were audited by Grove, Mueller & Swank, P.C., a firm 
of licensed, certified public accountants. The goal of this independent audit was to 
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the District for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2016, are free of material misstatements. The independent audit 
involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was 
a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the District's basic financial 
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, are fairly presented in all material 
respects in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented in the 
Financial Section of this report. 

In addition to meeting the requirements set forth above, the independent audit also was 
designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies as provided for in the 
Federal Single Audit Act and the Office of Management and Budget's (OMB) Uniform 
Guidance. These standards require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair 
presentation of the basic financial statements but also on the audited government's 

P.O. Box 7070, Springfield, OR 97475-0470 1 Phone: 541-687-5555 1 Fax: 541-682-6111 I 7-1-1 TTY I LTD.org  
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internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on 
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. 
The results of the independent audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, indicated 
two instances of material weaknesses in the internal control structure but no significant 
violations of applicable laws and regulations. The independent auditor's reports, related 
specifically to the Single Audit and OMB Uniform Guidance, are contained in a separate 
report. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is located in the Financial Section 
immediately following the independent auditor's report and precedes the basic financial 
statements. The MD&A provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the 
basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the 
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with the MD&A. 

District Overview 

Lane Transit District (LTD) was established in 1970 under the laws of the State of 
Oregon that allowed the formation of transit districts as special taxing entities. The 
District began operating in the Eugene-Springfield area in 1970. LTD serves a 
population base of approximately 300,000 with a fleet of 110 buses that travel more 
than 3.75 million miles annually. Passenger boardings were approximately 10.2 million 
for FY16. In FY16, LTD provided more than 268,000 revenue hours of fixed-route 
service. 

The boundaries of Lane Transit District fall entirely within Lane County, encompassing 
approximately 522 square miles. LTD serves the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area; 
the incorporated cities of Coburg, Creswell, Cottage Grove, Lowell, Veneta, and 
Junction City; and the unincorporated area along Highway 126 between Springfield and 
the McKenzie Bridge Ranger Station. 

LTD is governed by a Board of Directors composed of seven members, each appointed 
by the governor of Oregon and confirmed by the Oregon State Senate. Each board 
member represents a subdistrict of LTD's service area. The Board is responsible for 
development of District policies and hires and directs the activities of the general 
manager. The general manager, in turn, directs the daily activities of the District and is 
responsible for the overall management of the District and its employees. 

The District is committed to the successful implementation of total fixed-route 
accessibility and the successful operation of a demand-response/paratransit service for 
persons unable to use the fixed-route system. All of LTD's fixed-route buses are 
equipped with wheelchair lifts or ramps. The District also provides comparable demand-
response services for those persons who are unable to use the fixed-route system. In 
addition to the fixed-route and demand-response services, LTD also offers the 
Point2point transportation options program and serves as the county's Medicaid 
non-emergency medical transportation brokerage. 
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The District was empowered by the state legislature, under Oregon Revised Statutes 
267, to impose an excise tax on every employer on the wages paid with respect to 
employment of individuals. The same authority permits the District to levy an equal tax 
on self-employed individuals. The allowable rate has been gradually increased by 
amendment to the statute and the authority of the District's Board of Directors. Per LTD 
Ordinances 50 and 51, the payroll and self-employment taxes for calendar year 2015 
were seven tenths of one percent (.7%) and for calendar year 2016 were seventy-one 
one hundredths of one percent (.71 %). 

For financial planning and control, the District prepares and adopts an annual budget in 
accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes Chapters 294.305 through 294.565. The 
legally adopted budget is at the fund/program level for current expenditures, with 
separate appropriations established for capital outlay, debt service, interfund transfers, 
and contingencies. Budgetary control is internally administered at a more restrictive 
level. Budget-to-actual comparisons, for each individual fund for which an appropriated 
annual budget has been adopted, are provided as supplementary information in this 
report. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

Local Economy 

LTD serves the Eugene-Springfield metropolitan area, which has an estimated 
population of 305,350. In June 2016, total nonfarm employment in Lane County was 
158,300, compared to 153,400 in June 2015, representing an increase of 4,900 jobs in 
the last year. 

June June June June June 
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Civilian labor force 
Unemployment 
Unemployment rate 

Total employment 

Total nonfarm employment 
Percent annual change 

Source: Oregon Employment Department 

172,591 166,570 168,693 170,937 177,235 
15,299 13,424 11,622 10,433 9,769 

8.9% 8.1% 6.9% 6.1% 5.5% 
157,292 153,146 157,071 160,504 167,466 

144,500 145,500 149,200 153,400 158,300 
-0.2% 0.7% 2.5% 2.8% 3.2% 

Since the economic downturn, with the unemployment rate reaching a peak of 
13.5 percent in March 2009, jobs have slowly been returning; and the unemployment 
rate has fallen to 5.5 percent as of June 2016. This is slightly higher than the 
comparable rates of 5.1 percent for the State of Oregon and 4.9 percent for the United 

Page 5



States as a whole. The June 2016 unemployment rate was .6 percent lower than for 
June 2015. 

Long-Range Financial Plan 

Annually, as part of the budget process, the District updates the rolling ten-year Long-
Range Financial Plan. The plan is reviewed in detail in a separate schedule that 
combines operating revenue and expenditure projections with capital outlay 
requirements as outlined in the Capital Improvements Program (CIP). Major 
assumptions for the Long-Range Financial Plan, revised for the FY17 budget process, 
included the following: 

Payroll and self-employment taxes saw strong growth in FY16, exceeding 
budgeted amounts by nearly $6.3 million due to better-than-expected economic 
growth and early adoption .of the payroll tax rate increase. In FY17, payroll and 
self-employment taxes are projected to increase from year-end balances by 
$257,400. This conservative forecast allows for revenue growth generated by the 
scheduled payroll tax rate increase of one one-hundredth of one percent 
(.001 %), but does not assume further growth. 

Operating revenues — including passenger fares, monthly passes, Group Pass 
Program, advertising, and special services — are forecast to increase to 
$7.9 million, a $100,000 increase from the prior year. Growth is predicted in 
Group Pass sales and advertising revenues. 

Personnel services are proposed at $34.9 million for FY17, a growth of $3 million 
from the FY16 budget. The growth is attributed to hiring more bus operators to 
increase service levels (20 FTE) and a contractually obligated cost-of-living 
adjustment (COLA) for represented employees. The FY17 budget follows 
actuarial advice and proposes a one-time payment and increased agency 
contributions to the now-closed salaried employee pension plan. 

• Funding of $40.6 million is programmed for West Eugene EmX construction. It is 
necessary to appropriate the balance of the entire remaining project cost in order 
to meet local budget law requirements; however, the project will not require that 
amount in FY17. 

Grant funding in the amount of $9.9 million is allocated to purchase 13 new 
buses (three 60-foot, hybrid-diesel buses; five 40-foot, hybrid-diesel buses; and 
five 40-foot, all-electric, zero-emissions buses). The Capital Improvements 
Program calls for purchasing an additional ten 40-foot buses if funding becomes 
available through grants or debt financing. 

Grant funding and local match in the amount of $1 million is allocated to expand 
the bus lot to accommodate new and larger vehicles and install electric charging 
stations for zero emission, all-electric buses. 
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Major Initiatives 

The District has a number of major initiatives that will impact current and future budgets: 

The West Eugene EmX Extension continues the construction phase, which will 
be completed in FY18. The $100 million project will open for service in 
September 2017. 

• The District has engaged in a cooperative effort, known as MovingAhead, with 
the City of Eugene, regional partners, and community members to determine 
what improvements are needed on some of the area's most important 
transportation corridors. Decision on a locally preferred alternative for the project 
is expected in FY18. 

• LTD is preparing to undergo development of a new Santa Clara Community 
Transit Center in the Santa Clara neighborhood with work expected to be 
completed by the end of calendar year 2019. 
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475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301 
(503) 581-7788

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Lane Transit District 
Springfield, Oregon 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the statements of net position, statements of revenue, expenses and changes in net 
position, and cash flows of Lane Transit District (the District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 
2016 and 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of Lane Transit District, as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the respective 
changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A), schedule of changes in net pension liability and 
related ratios – LTD Salaried Employees’ Retirement Plan, schedule of employer contributions – LTD 
Salaried Employees’ Retirement Plan,  schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios – 
LTD and ATU Pension Trust, schedule of employer contributions – LTD and ATU Pension Trust,  and 
schedule of OPEB funding progress, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the MD&A and other schedules 
described above in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information, 
introductory section and statistical section, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not 
a required part of the basic financial statements.  

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, 
the other supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them.
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Other Reporting Required by Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April **, 
2017, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Reporting Required by Oregon Minimum Standards 

In accordance with Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued 
our report dated April 27, 2017, on our consideration of the District’s compliance with certain 
provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in 
Oregon Administrative Rules.   The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance. 

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C.   
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

By: 
Ryan T. Pasquarella, A Shareholder 
April 27, 2017 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the Lane 
Transit District (LTD or the District) financial performance for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2015.  It is designed to assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, providing an 
overview of the District’s financial activity, and identifying changes in the District’s financial position. 

This MD&A is based on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions that existed as of the date of 
the independent auditor’s report. As with other sections of the financial report, the information 
contained within the MD&A should be considered only as part of a greater whole.  The reader of this 
MD&A should take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report, including the notes to financial 
statements and other supplementary information that is provided in addition to this MD&A. Additional 
information outside the scope of this analysis can be found in the Letter of Transmittal. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The District’s financial statements consist of statements of net position; statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position; and statements of cash flows.  These statements offer short- 
and long-term financial information about all the District’s activities.  The notes to the financial 
statements contain more detail on some of the information presented in the financial statements.  Over 
time, increases or decreases in net position, as reported on the statements of net position, may serve 
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. 

The District’s financial statements have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP). 
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, and 
expenses are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, regardless of the timing of related 
cash flows. 

In FY15, the District adopted GASB Statements No. 68 and 71.  These statements established new 
accounting and reporting rules related to pension plans that, most notably, include presenting the net 
pension liability and deferred inflows and outflows related to pensions on the statement of net position. 
There are also a number of changes to the notes to the financial statements and required 
supplementary information. The financial statements are found on pages 26-29 of this report. 

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided within the financial statements.  The notes to the financial 
statements are found on pages 30-56 of this report. 
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Financial Summary 

Net Position 

FY16 

The District’s total assets increased $31.9 million (17.5 percent) in FY16, from $182.1 million to 
$214 million. Current assets decreased $3.1 million, predominately from decreases to grants 
receivable and the District’s parts and supplies inventory.  The net book value of capital assets 
increased $35.5 million with the addition of $34.7 million in construction-in-process assets, primarily 
related to the West Eugene Emerald Express extension project. The District’s total liabilities increased 
$1.2 million (2.7 percent) in FY16 from $45.6 million to $46.8 million.  This is largely attributable to 
increases related to the net pension liabilities for the LTD ATU pension trust and Salaried Employees’ 
pension plan, $1.6 million and $4.4 million, respectively. 

The net position of the District increased $35.2 million (25.6 percent) in FY16, from $137.3 million to 
$173.1 million.  Of the $173.1 million, $9.9 million was unrestricted, a decrease of $1.6 million from 
the prior year.  The remaining portion of net position is invested in capital assets or restricted for use 
in Accessible Services and Medicaid programs. 

FY15 

The District’s total assets increased $27 million (17.4 percent) in FY15, from $155.1 million to 
$182.1 million. Current assets increased $14.9 million, predominately from increases to grants 
receivable and taxes receivable.  The net book value of capital assets increased $12.1 million with the 
addition of $23.3 million in new assets offset by depreciation expense of $11.2 million. 

The District’s total liabilities increased $12.9 million (39.6 percent) in FY15 from $32.7 million to 
$45.6 million.  This is largely attributable to increases in accounts payable ($2.9 million) and increases 
in unearned revenue resulting from receipt of state lottery bond proceeds to be used in future 
construction of the West Eugene EmX Extension ($9.3 million). The net position of the District 
increased $15 million (12.2 percent) in FY15, from $122.3 million to $137.3 million.  Of this amount, 
$11.4 million was unrestricted, an increase of $2.8 million from the prior year.  The remaining portion 

Increase Percentage Increase Percentage
2014 (decrease) Change (decrease) Change

2016 . 2015 . (As restated) . 2016-2015 . 2016-2015 . 2015-2014 . 2015-2014

183,628,488$      183,628,488$       183,628,488$       183,628,488$       183,628,488$ 183,628,488$        183,628,488$  
Assets

Current assets 53,537,565$     56,639,732$      41,747,999$    (3,102,167)$      -5.5% 14,891,733$    35.7%
Capital assets, net of depreciation 160,464,158    125,447,247  113,337,904  35,016,911     27.9% 12,109,343   10.7%
Other assets -   -   -    -   0.0% - 0.0%

Total assets 214,001,723    182,086,979  155,085,903  31,914,744     17.5% 27,001,076   17.4%

Deferred outflows of resources 6,267,715   1,540,509   1,693,168    4,727,206    306.9% (152,659)   -9.0%

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 220,269,437      183,627,488  156,779,071  36,641,949     20.0% 26,848,417   17.1%

Liabilites
Current liabilities 17,233,164   22,159,541    10,036,528  (4,926,377)  -22.2% 12,123,013   120.8%
Noncurrent liabilities 29,591,803   23,454,799    22,635,145  6,137,004    26.2% 819,654   3.6%

Total liabilities 46,824,967   45,614,340    32,671,673  1,210,627    2.7% 12,942,667   39.6%

Deferred inflows of resources 351,796   712,072   1,784,272    (360,276)  -50.6% (1,072,200)   -60.1%

Net Position
Investment in capital assets 160,464,158    125,447,247  113,337,904  35,016,911     27.9% 12,109,343   10.7%
Restricted for Accessible Services
  and Medicaid programs 2,775,776   440,273   398,255    2,335,503    530.5% 42,018     10.6%
Unrestricted 9,852,740   11,413,556    8,586,967    (1,560,816)  -13.7% 2,826,589     32.9%

Total net position 173,092,674    137,301,076  122,323,126  35,791,598     26.1% 14,977,950   12.2%

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
  and net position 220,269,437$      183,627,488$       156,779,071$       36,641,949$         20.0% 26,848,417$       17.1%

District Total
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of net position is invested in capital assets or restricted for use in Accessible Services and Medicaid 
programs. 

Changes in Net Position 

FY16 

The District’s net position increased $35.8 million in FY16 to $173.1 million.  Total revenues were up 
$3.2 million (5.2 percent), offset by an increase in total expenses of $4.5 million (6.9 percent).  Federal 
assistance in the amount of $4.7 million contributed to the favorable change in net position.  

Operating revenues of $21.9 million reflect an increase of 4.1 percent in FY16.  Most of this increase 
was attributable to continuing growth in Accessible Services and Medicaid programs.  Advertising 
increased 1.36 percent. 

Non-operating revenues of $42.1 million were up 5.8 percent in FY16.  The increase in capital 
contributions is related to the West Eugene EmX Extension project and is the primary driver of the 
increase in non-operating revenues. Also, payroll tax receipts were favorably impacted by a steadily 
increasing economy combined with a full year of taxes at the maximum tax rate compared with the 
prior year in which the rate was only increased for the last half of the fiscal year.  Tax collections 
increased $3.4 million.  This increase was offset by the reduction of state payroll assessments 
collected by $.2 million. 

Increase Percentage Increase Percentage
2014 (decrease) Change (decrease) Change

2016 . 2015 . (As restated) . 2016-2015 . 2016-2015 . 2015-2014 . 2015-2014

183,628,488$ 183,628,488$ 183,628,488$ 183,628,488$    183,628,488$ 183,628,488$ 183,628,488$ 
Revenues

Operating revenues
Passenger fares 7,119,850$     7,200,332$     6,948,609$     (80,482)$       -1.12% 251,723$   3.62%
Accessible Services and Medicaid 14,115,352   13,173,252  9,857,780   942,100    7.15% 3,315,472    33.63%
Advertising 443,887    437,950   460,000  5,937   1.36% (22,050)   -4.79%
Special services 243,928    255,587   324,561  (11,659)    -4.56% (68,974)   -21.25%

Nonoperating revenues
Employer payroll tax 34,394,558   30,981,560  25,374,737     3,412,998     11.02% 5,606,823    22.10%
Self-employment tax 1,902,866     1,683,987    1,647,329   218,879    13.00% 36,658    2.23%
State payroll assessment 400,795    609,978   1,914,665   (209,183)  -34.29% (1,304,687)   -68.14%
Federal assistance 4,736,708     6,001,519    5,993,929   (1,264,811)   -21.07% 7,590      0.13%
State assistance 154,426    29,688     723,888  124,738    420.16% (694,200)      -95.90%
Local assistance 161,641    57,910     48,301    103,731    179.12% 9,609      19.89%
Interest 99,207      52,359     85,619    46,848      89.47% (33,260)   -38.85%
Facility rental and other nonoperating revenues 238,853    375,877   318,026  (137,024)  -36.45% 57,851    18.19%
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 6,644   (2,877)      13,052    9,521   -330.94% (15,929)   -122.04%

Total operating and nonoperating revenues 64,018,715   60,857,122  53,710,496     3,161,593     5.20% 7,146,626    13.31%

Operating expenses
Personnel services 30,873,553   27,919,217  26,037,899     2,954,336     10.58% 1,881,318    7.23%
Materials and services 9,178,422     9,604,093    9,496,751   (425,671)  -4.43% 107,342  1.13%
Insurance 880,893    1,017,707    1,125,978   (136,814)  -13.44% (108,271)      -9.62%
Accessible Services and Medicaid 16,768,307   14,617,685  12,314,118     2,150,622     14.71% 2,303,567    18.71%
Depreciation 11,129,702   11,152,433  10,519,936     (22,731)    -0.20% 632,497  6.01%
OPEB expense 395,154    461,715   555,778  (66,561)    -14.42% (94,063)   -16.92%

Total operating expenses 69,226,030   64,772,850  60,050,460     4,453,180     6.88% 4,722,390    7.86%

Gain (Loss) before contributions (5,207,315)    (3,915,728)   (6,339,964)  (1,291,587)   32.98% 2,424,236    -38.24%

Capital contributions 40,998,913   18,893,678  8,564,456   22,105,235   117.00% 10,329,222  120.61%

Changes in net position 35,791,598   14,977,950  2,224,462   20,813,648   138.96% 12,753,488  573.33%

Total net position -- beginning of period 137,301,076   122,323,126   138,990,414   14,977,950   12.24% (16,667,288)    -11.99%

Cumulative effect of restatement (18,891,750)    

Total net position -- beginning of period (restated) 120,098,664   

Total net position -- end of period 173,092,674$ 137,301,076$ 141,214,876$ 35,791,598$      26.07% (3,913,800)   -2.77%

District Total
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Operating expenses of $69.2 million were up 6.9 percent in FY16.  Personnel services were up 
10.6 percent ($3.0 million).  Increases in Accessible Services and Medicaid of 14.7 percent were 
driven by strong demand for those programs.  Materials and services decreased $.4 million or 4.43% 
percent.  The charge for depreciation stayed flat at 11.1 million. 

Capital contributions reflect funds received from federal, state, and local sources for use in capital 
projects.  This component of the change in net position can vary significantly from year to year 
depending on the number and type of capital projects undertaken.  Details of capital spending can be 
found below in the capital assets portion of this analysis. 

FY15 

The District’s net position increased $15 million in FY15 to $137.3 million.  Total revenues were up 
$7.1 million (13.3 percent), offset by an increase in total expenses of $4.7 million (7.9 percent).  Capital 
contributions of $18.9 million also contributed to the favorable change in net position. 

Operating revenues of $21.1 million reflect an increase of 19.8 percent in FY15.  Most of this increase 
was attributable to continuing growth in Accessible Services and Medicaid programs.  Passenger fares 
increased 3.6 percent. 
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Nonoperating revenues of $39.8 million were up 10.2 percent in FY15.  Payroll tax receipts were 
favorably impacted by a steadily increasing economy combined with a full year of taxes at the 
maximum tax rate compared with the prior year in which the rate was only increased for the last half 
of the fiscal year.  Tax collections increased $5.6 million.  This increase was offset by the reduction of 
state payroll assessments collected by $1.3 million. 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2016, the District had invested $160.5 million, net of accumulated depreciation, in a variety 
of capital assets. 

FY16 

In FY16, the District spent $46.7 million for capital acquisition and construction, approximately 
81 percent of which was reimbursed by federal and state governments.  Of this amount, $32.5 million 
was spent for construction activities related to the West Eugene EmX Extension project.  Other 
expenditures included $.9 million for acquisition of accessible services vehicles, $7.3 million for the 
purchase of buses, $1.1 million for new computer hardware and software, passenger boarding 
improvements, and facilities improvements.  Overall, the District’s net position in capital assets 
increased by $35.0 million after the charge for depreciation. 

FY15 

In FY15, the District spent $23.3 million for capital acquisition and construction, approximately 
81 percent of which was reimbursed by federal and state governments.  Of this amount, $15.8 million 
was spent for construction activities related to the West Eugene EmX Extension project.  Other 
expenditures included $3.3 million for acquisition of land to be used for a future transit station, 
$2.9 million for the purchase of buses, $1.3 million for new computer hardware and software, 
passenger boarding improvements, facilities improvements, and purchase of an Accessible Services 
vehicle.  Overall, the District’s net position in capital assets increased by $12.1 million after the charge 
for depreciation. 

Note 3(d) (page 38) contains additional detail information about capital assets activity. 

Increase Percentage Increase Percentage 
(decrease) Change (decrease) Change

2016 2015 2014 2016-2015 2016-2015 2015-2014 2015-2014

Land 12,057,496$    12,057,496$    8,708,370$     (0)$    0.0% 3,349,126$    38.5%
Freestanding public art 366,917     366,917   366,917    (0) 0.0% -                 0.0%
Construction in progress 61,514,532     26,809,415   11,253,541     34,705,117    308.4% 15,555,874  138.2%
Busways 29,742,703     32,088,829   34,389,800     (2,346,126)    -6.8% (2,300,971)   -6.7%
Rolling stock and related equipment 26,489,253     23,240,402   24,605,064     3,248,851   13.2% (1,364,662)   -5.5%
Stations, shelters, and bus signs 8,178,975    9,228,780     10,426,073     (1,049,805)    -10.1% (1,197,293)   -11.5%
Buildings and improvements 18,627,551     18,302,790   19,679,255     324,761   1.7% (1,376,465)   -7.0%
Accessible Services vehicles 1,329,807    1,035,846     1,391,302    293,961   21.1% (355,456)   -25.5%
Other equipment and support vehicles 2,156,925    2,316,772     2,517,582    (159,847)    -6.3% (200,810)   -8.0%

160,464,158$  125,447,247$  113,337,904$ 35,016,911$     30.9% 12,109,343$  10.7%

Capital Assets, net of depreciation
As of June 30

District Totals
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Economic Factors and Related Budget Impact  
 
During the preparation of the budget for the ensuing fiscal year, the long-term impacts of the local 
economy were examined in conjunction with business decisions made by the District.  Following are 
the major assumptions used in developing the FY17 budget: 
 
 Payroll and self-employment taxes saw strong growth in FY 15-16, exceeding budgeted amounts 

by nearly $6.3 million due to better-than-expected economic growth and early adoption of the 
payroll tax rate increase. In FY 16-17, payroll and self-employment taxes are projected to 
increase from year-end balances by $257,400. This conservative forecast allows for revenue 
growth generated by the scheduled payroll tax rate increase of .001% (one one hundredth of one 
percent), but does not assume further growth.  

 Operating revenues – including passenger fares, monthly passes, Group Pass Program, 
advertising, and special services – are forecast to increase to $7.9 million, a $100,000 increase 
from the prior year. Growth is predicted in Group Pass sales and advertising revenues.  

 FAST Act formula funding increases are predicted to slightly increase available federal funding; 
however, significant growth is not expected.  

 
 Staff belonging to the Amalgamated Transit Union Local 757 will increase by twenty bus operators 

to provide increased service. There will be a 1.6 percent cost of living allowance for the first six 
months of FY 16-17 followed by an additional 1.75% cost of living allowance for the final six months 
of the fiscal year. 

 $40.6 million is programmed to fund the West Eugene EmX construction. It is necessary to 
appropriate the balance of the entire remaining project cost in order to meet local budget law 
requirements; however, the project will not require that amount in FY 16-17.  

 $9.9 million in grant funding is allocated to purchase 13 new buses (three 60-foot, hybrid-diesel 
buses; five 40-foot, hybrid-diesel buses; and five 40-foot, all-electric, zero-emissions buses). The 
Capital Improvements Program calls for purchasing an additional ten 40-foot buses if funding 
becomes available through grants or debt financing. All bus purchases will replace vehicles that 
have reached the end of their useful life.  

 $1 million of grant funding and local match is allocated to expand the bus lot to accommodate 
new and larger vehicles and install electric charging stations for zero-emission, all-electric buses.  

 
Requests for Information 

 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for those with 
an interest in the District’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this 
report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the following: 
 

Finance Division 
Lane Transit District 
P.O. Box 7070 
Springfield, OR  97475-0470 
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Basic Financial Statements 
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2016  2015 

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Unrestricted 23,122,153$         6,011,081$           
Restricted 10,190,243      13,608,946      

Accounts receivable 1,556,589             973,288 
Taxes receivable 8,761,057             9,316,919             
Grants receivable 7,416,812             23,402,140           
Due from other governments 124,624 - 
Inventory of parts and supplies 2,009,317             2,971,302             
Prepaid expenses 296,771 296,056 
Deposits 60,000 60,000 

Total current assets 53,537,565           56,639,732           

Capital assets
Land 12,057,496           12,057,496           
Freestanding public art 366,917 366,917 
Construction in progress 61,519,546           26,809,415           
Other capital assets (net of depreciation) 86,520,199           86,213,419           

Net capital assets 160,464,158         125,447,247         

Total assets 214,001,723         182,086,979         

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows - LTD ATU Pension Trust 2,878,845             1,112,696             
Deferred outflows - LTD Salaried Employees' Plan 3,388,869        427,813           

Total deferred outflows of resources 6,267,714             1,540,509             

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 220,269,437$       183,627,488$       

 Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2016 and 2015
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2016  2015 

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Accounts payable 5,886,709$           6,275,969$           
Accrued payroll 588,767           468,697           
Payroll withholdings and taxes 44,686             35,567             
Accrued pension 117,362           90,030             
Accrued vacation and sick leave 570,869           847,773           
Unearned revenue 8,424,751        13,969,215      
Other current liabilities 1,600,020        472,290           

Total current liabilities 17,233,164           22,159,541           

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued vacation and sick leave 1,517,773        1,835,368        
Net OPEB obligation 4,516,192        4,121,038        
Net pension liability - LTD ATU Pension Trust 13,314,322      11,685,045      

Net pension liability - LTD Salaried Employee's Plan 10,243,516      5,813,348        

Total noncurrent liabilities 29,591,803           23,454,799           

Total liabilities 46,824,967           45,614,340           

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows - LTD ATU Pension Trust 351,796 712,072 

Total deferred inflows of resources 351,796 712,072 

Net position
Investment in capital assets 160,464,158    125,447,247    
Restricted for Accessible Services and Medicaid programs 2,775,776        440,273           
Unrestricted 9,852,739        11,413,556      

Total net position 173,092,673         137,301,076         

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position 220,269,437$       183,627,488$       

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2016 2015

Operating revenues
Passenger fares 7,119,850$              7,200,332$              
Special services 243,928 255,587 
Accessible Services and Medicaid 14,115,352 13,173,252 
Advertising 443,887 437,950 

Total operating revenues 21,923,017 21,067,121 

Operating expenses
Personnel services 30,873,553 27,919,217 
Materials and services 9,178,422 9,604,093 
Insurance 880,893 1,017,707 
Accessible Services and Medicaid 16,768,307 14,617,685 
Depreciation 11,129,702 11,152,433 
OPEB expense 395,154 461,715 

Total operating expenses 69,226,030 64,772,850 

Operating loss (47,303,013)             (43,705,729)             

Nonoperating revenues
Employer payroll tax, net of state administrative fees
    (2016, $510,294.08; 2015, $483,243) 34,394,558 30,981,560 
Self-employment tax, net of state administrative fees
    (2016, $87,616.87; 2015, $78,647) 1,902,866 1,683,987 
State payroll assessment 400,795 609,978 
Federal assistance 4,736,708 6,001,519 
State assistance 154,426 29,688 
Local assistance 161,641 57,910 
Interest 99,207 52,359 
Facility rental and other nonoperating revenues 238,853 375,877 
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 6,644 (2,877) 

Total nonoperating revenues 42,095,698 39,790,001 

Gain (Loss) before capital contributions (5,207,315) (3,915,728) 

Capital contributions

Federal and state grants for capital acquisition 40,998,913 18,893,678 

Changes in net position 35,791,597 14,977,950 

Total net position -- beginning of period 137,301,076            122,323,126            

Total net position -- end of period 173,092,673$          137,301,076$          

173,092,673            137,301,076            
- - 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
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$ 20,980,905 
238,903 

(25,721,160) 
(31,311,563) 

(35,812,915) 

34,969,635 
1,883,652 

276,171 
7,432,823 

151,042 
161,641 

$ 22,150,914 
375,877 

(25,428,054) 
(28,751,408) 
(31,652,671) 

26,838,078 
1,667,748 
1,001,186 
5,423,354 

30,968 
57,910 

44,874,962 35,019,244 

49,103,349 17,074,661 
19,199 9,892 

(44,591,434) (20,374,189) 
4,531,114 (3,289,636) 

99,207 52,359 

99,207 52,359 

13,692,369 129,296 
19,620,027 19,490, 731 

$ 33,312,396 $ 19,620,027 

(47,303,013) $ (43,705,729) 

11,129,702 
971,654 
395,154 
238,853 

(583,301) 
961,985 

(715) 
201,338 

(437,978) 
(371,661) 

(1,014,933) 
$ (35,812,915) 

11,152,433 
(498,237) 
461,715 
375,877 
771,142 

(325, 360) 
(48,825) 
389,222 
117,987 
312,652 

(444,049) 
(211,499) 

$ (31,652,671) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

411;1: 2015 
Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash received from customers 
Cash received from other sources 
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services 
Cash paid to employees for services 

Net cash used for operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities 
Employer payroll tax 
Self-employment tax 
State payroll assessment 
Federal operating grant 
State operating grant 
Local operating grant 

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Contribution from federal and state agencies 
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Interest receipts 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used for operating activities: 
Operating loss 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash 

used for operating activities 
Depreciation 
Increase (Decrease) in net pension liability 
OPEB expense 
Facility rental and other nonoperating revenues 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase) decrease in inventory of parts and supplies 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll and related liabilities 
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 
Increase (decrease) in health reimbursement account liability 
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities 

Net cash used for operating activities 

LTD disposed of capital assets with a net book value of $12,555 and $7,758 in years ended June 30, 2016 
and 2015, respectively. 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted and restricted amounts. 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Lane Transit District (LTD or the District) have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP)
as applied to governmental entities.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant accounting policies of the District are described below.

(a) Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government, as well as its component
units, which are legally separate organizations for which the officials of the primary
government are financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as appointment
of a voting majority of the component unit’s board and either (1) the ability to impose will by
the primary government, or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial
benefit to or impose a financial burden on the primary government.

Based upon the above criteria, the District does not have any component units that require
inclusion in the financial statements. Conversely, the District is not a component unit of
another government.

(b) Organization and Operation

The District was organized under the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) Chapter
267 to provide mass transit services to the Eugene-Springfield area.  Formation of the District
was effective November 23, 1970, with the assumption of the operations of a privately owned
bus system.  Under ORS 267, the District is authorized to levy taxes and charge fares to pay
for the operations of the District.  LTD also is authorized to issue general obligation bonds
and revenue bonds.

The District is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors appointed by the Governor
of the State of Oregon.  Board members represent and must live in certain geographical
subdistricts.  The Board of Directors sets District policy, levies taxes, appropriates funds,
adopts budgets, and performs other duties required by state and federal law.  Board
members are not compensated for their time.

The accounts of the District are organized on the basis of funds. Fund accounting is designed
to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by segregating
governmental functions and activities.  The operations of each fund are accounted for by
providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
equities, revenues, and expenditures (expenses).
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(c) Basis of Accounting and Revenue Recognition 
 

The District’s financial statements are presented as a single-proprietary fund.  Proprietary 
funds are used to account for operations and activities that are similar to those found in the 
private sector.  The measurement focus is upon the determination of net income. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared using the economic resources measurement 
focus and accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America.  Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the 
period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized in the period in which they are 
incurred, depreciation of assets is recognized as an expense in the statements of revenues, 
and expenses and changes in net position and all assets and liabilities associated with the 
operation of the District are included in the statements of net position. 
 
Operating revenues consist primarily of passenger fares. The District also recognizes 
contracted service revenue and transit advertising revenue as operating revenue.  Operating 
expenses are the costs of operating the District, including depreciation on capital assets.  
Capital contributions include grant revenue and other contributions related to capital asset 
acquisitions or construction.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
The District has no allowance for doubtful accounts.  Past experience has shown that 
uncollectible amounts are likely to be insignificant. 

 
(d) Tax Revenues 

 
Funding of day-to-day operations is primarily provided by the payroll tax imposed by the 
District pursuant to ORS 267.380 and the self-employment tax imposed by the District 
pursuant to ORS 267.385.  The payroll tax is imposed on employers with respect to wages 
earned within the District service area.  An employer is not permitted to deduct any portion 
of the tax from the wages of an employee.  The self-employment tax is imposed on self-
employed individuals with respect to their net earnings generated within the District service 
area.  The District currently imposes these taxes at a rate of 0.71 percent of the wages paid 
to individuals (for payroll tax) and net earnings from self-employed individuals (for self-
employment tax).  The taxes are collected on the District’s behalf by the Department of 
Revenue of the State of Oregon under an agreement entered into pursuant to ORS 305.620.  
Imposed tax revenues are recorded as assets and revenues in the period that the obligation 
is incurred by the employers and the self-employed individuals.  Amounts accrued are 
estimated based upon current cash receipts and are trued up in the period that cash is 
collected. 

 
(e) Restricted Assets 

 
Restricted assets are assets set aside to meet externally imposed legal and contractual 
obligations.  Restricted assets are used in accordance with their requirements.  Where both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, restricted resources are used 
first, and then unrestricted resources are used as they are needed.  Restricted assets are 
current assets restricted for use in Accessible Services and Medicaid programs. 
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(f) Cash and Investments 

 
Cash and cash equivalents include deposits in the State of Oregon Local Government 
Investment Pool and financial institutions, and marketable securities with original maturities 
of three months or less. 
 
ORS Chapter 294 authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and 
U.S. Government agencies and instrumentalities, certain bankers’ acceptances and 
corporate indebtedness, repurchase agreements, and the State of Oregon Local 
Government Investment Pool. 
 
Investments are accounted for at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 72. 
 
For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the District considers “cash” to include cash 
on hand, demand deposits, and highly liquid investments that are readily converted into 
known amounts of cash or so near maturity they present insignificant risk of changes in value 
as a result of changes in interest rates. 

  
(g) Grant Receivables 

 
Grant receivables are recorded in accordance with the nonexchange guidance.  Accordingly, 
receivables are recorded when all eligibility criteria have been met. 
 

(h) Inventories and Prepaid Expenses 
 
Inventories of fuel, lubricants, parts, and supplies are valued at cost, which approximates 
market, using the average-cost method. 
 
Payments to vendors reflecting costs applicable to future accounting periods are recorded 
as prepaid expenses. 
 

(i) Capital Assets and Depreciation 
 
Capital assets are stated at cost, except for donated capital assets, which are stated at the 
fair market value on the date of donation. Expenditures for additions and improvements with 
a value in excess of $5,000 and a useful life of more than one year are capitalized.  
Expenditures for maintenance, repairs, and minor improvements are charged to operations 
as incurred.  Upon disposal of capital assets, the accounts are relieved of the related costs 
and accumulated depreciation, and the resulting gains or losses are reflected in the 
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position as other revenue. 
 
Capital assets, excluding land, freestanding public art, and construction in progress, are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.  
Depreciation is an accounting process to allocate the cost of capital assets to expense in a 
systematic and rational manner to those periods expected to benefit from the use of capital 
assets.  Depreciation is not intended to represent an estimate in the decline of fair market 
value, nor are capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, intended to represent an 
estimate of the current condition of the assets or the maintenance requirements needed to 
maintain the assets at their current level of condition. 
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Revenue rolling stock is depreciated using a twelve-year life as suggested by the U.S. 
Government Federal Transit Administration (FTA).  Busways are depreciated over twenty 
years.  Shelters, stations, and buildings have estimated useful lives of ten to forty years.  
Accessible Services vehicles have estimated useful lives of four to seven years.  Useful lives 
for furniture and other equipment range from three to thirty years. 
 

(j) Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, 
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until then. 
 

(k) Compensated Absences 
 
The liability for vested or accumulated leave pay is recorded as the benefits accrue to 
employees.  Vacation pay is payable upon termination, retirement, or death for both union 
and nonunion employees.  Sick leave is recorded at approximately 50 percent of total 
accumulated benefits based on the estimated total benefits to be paid to employees prior to 
or at retirement or separation from service. 
 

(l) Unearned Revenue 
 
Income from pass sales that relates to succeeding months is recognized when earned.  
Receipts in excess of related Medicaid program expenditures are recognized as revenues 
or refunded when program review is completed by the Oregon Department of Human 
Services.  Manufacturers’ rebates are recognized as revenue when grant-related conditions 
for application are met.  Pass-through proceeds from the sale of State of Oregon Lottery 
bonds are recognized as revenues when grant-related conditions are met. 
 

(m) Employee HRA Liability 
 
Expense for eligible employees’ health reimbursement accounts (HRAs) is recorded in the 
month earned by the employee.  A liability is recorded when made available to the employee 
for disbursement.  In January 2015, the District chose to convert this benefit to a funded 
voluntary employee beneficiary association (VEBA), thereby eliminating the HRA liability 
from that point forward. 
 

(n) Net position 
 
Net investment in capital assets consists of all capital assets reduced by amounts of 
accumulated depreciation and amounts related to issued debt that are attributable to the 
acquisition, construction, and improvement of those assets.  Restricted net position consists 
of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as lenders, 
grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, and enabling legislation, including self-imposed 
legal mandates.  Unrestricted net position consists of all other net position not included in 
the above categories. 
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(o) Use of Estimates 

 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect reporting amounts of certain assets, liabilities, revenues, and 
expenses.  Actual results may differ from such estimates. 
 

(p) New Pronouncements 
 
During FY16, the District implemented the following GASB pronouncements: 
 
 Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and Application.” This Statement addresses 

accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value measurements. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods 
beginning after June 15, 2015. 

 
During FY15, the District implemented the following GASB pronouncements: 
 
 Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions; an amendment of 

GASB Statement No. 27." This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 
27 and No. 50 related to pension plans that are administered through as trusts and 
equivalent arrangements. The requirements of Statements No. 27 and No. 50 remain 
applicable for pensions that are not administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements. 
The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2014. 

 Statement No. 71, "Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the 
Measurement Date; an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68." The provisions of this 
Statement are required to be applied simultaneously with the provisions of Statement 
No. 68. The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for fiscal 
years beginning after June 15, 2014. 

2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 
 

(a) Budgets and Appropriations 
 
The District uses the following budgetary funds to account for its activities: 
 
 General Fund:  This fund accounts for the financial resources of the District that are not 

accounted for in any other fund.  Principal sources of revenue are passenger fares, 
advertising and special services, employer payroll and self-employment taxes, State of 
Oregon payroll assessments, federal operating assistance, and interest. Primary 
expenditures are for personnel services, materials and services, insurance, and 
interfund transfers to support accessible services and capital acquisition programs. 

 
 Accessible Services Fund:  This fund is used to account for the financial resources 

received primarily from federal and state grants restricted to use for accessible services 
programs, primarily for seniors and persons with disabilities, which complement regular 
fixed-route service. Primary revenue sources include State of Oregon Special 
Transportation Fund (STF) dollars, federal grants, and interfund transfers from the 
General Fund.  Primary expenditures are for contract services, program administration, 
and interfund transfers of local match funds for program capital asset acquisitions. 

Page 34



 
 Medicaid Fund:  This fund is used to account for the financial resources received from 

federal and state Medicaid programs restricted to use for these programs.  The Medicaid 
program provides transportation services to individuals who qualify for Oregon Health 
Plan (OHP) Plus medical coverage. With the opening of the RideSource Call Center on 
May 19, 2008, the District became the countywide broker for all Medicaid nonemergency 
medical transportation (NEMT) trips.  Trips are provided door to door in most cases. 
Primary revenue sources are reimbursements for services provided; federal, state, and 
local grants; and interfund transfers from the General Fund. Primary expenditures are 
for contract services and program administration. 

 
 Capital Projects Fund:  This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used 

for the acquisition or construction of capital assets.  The primary revenue sources are 
federal and state grants and transfers from the General Fund and Accessible Services 
Fund. 

 
The structure of the funds outlined above is in conformity with Oregon Local Budget Law 
(Oregon Revised Statutes 294.305 to 294.595). Budgetary basis revenues and expenditures 
are recognized on the modified accrual basis.  The treatment of capital expenditures, 
pension expenses, and other post-employment benefits is the principal difference between 
the budgetary basis and the accrual basis. Capital expenditures on a budgetary basis are 
recorded as current expenditures. 
 
The General Manager submits a proposed operating and capital budget to the Budget 
Committee a sufficient length of time in advance to allow adoption of the budget prior to 
July 1.  The operating and capital projects budget includes proposed expenditures and the 
means to finance them.  Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments. 
 
The District legally adopts its annual budget prior to July 1 through passage of a resolution. 
The resolution authorizes appropriations by fund and at broad classification levels for 
personnel services, materials and services, capital outlay, and contingency.  Expenditures 
cannot legally exceed appropriations at these control levels.  Appropriations that have not 
been spent at year-end expire. 
 
The Board of Directors, by resolution, may amend the budget as originally adopted.  In June 
2016, the Board adopted a single amendment to the budget necessitated by an increase in 
demand for Medicaid Non-Emergency Medical Transportation services. 
 

(b) Encumbrances 
 
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and commitments for 
the expenditure of monies are recorded to restrict a portion of the appropriation, is employed 
for administrative control purposes during the year. Encumbrances at year-end do not 
constitute expenses or liabilities. 
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3. Detail Notes 
 

(a) Cash 
 
Cash at June 30 consisted of the following: 
 
 
 

 

 

Deposits 
 
At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the District’s book balance in the general operating account was 
$ 6,289,227, and $2,449,203, respectively, and the bank balance was $6,082,045.78 and 
$2,303,176, respectively.  The difference is due to transactions in process.  As of June 30, 
2016, the District had deposits of $250,000 insured by federal depository insurance and 
$5,832,046 collateralized in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes.  As of June 30, 2015, 
the District had deposits of $250,000 insured by federal depository insurance and 
$2,053,176 collateralized in accordance with Oregon Revised Statutes. 
 
Investments 
 
Oregon Revised Statutes Chapter 294 authorizes the District to invest in obligations of the 
U.S. Treasury and U.S. government agencies and instrumentalities, certain bankers’ 
acceptances, and corporate indebtedness, repurchase agreements, the State of Oregon 
Local Government Investment Pool, time certificates of deposits, and various interest-
bearing bonds of Oregon municipalities. The District’s investment objectives, as stated in the 
District’s Investment Policy, are as follows: 
 
 Preservation of capital and the protection of investment principal 
 Conformance with all federal and state statutes 
 Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet operating requirements 
 Diversification to avoid unreasonable risks 
 Attainment of an investment return appropriate for the portfolio, using the State of 

Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) as the performance yardstick 
 
The District’s position in the LGIP at June 30, 2016 and 2015, is stated at cost, which is not 
materially different than fair value. 

 

2016 2015

Cash:

    Cash on hand 4,400$             4,400$             
    Demand deposits with financial institutions 6,289,227        2,449,203        
    State of Oregon Local Government Investment Pool 27,018,769      17,166,424      

Total cash 33,312,396$    19,620,027$    

Cash is reflected in the balance sheet as follows:

    Cash and cash equivalents

       Unrestricted 23,122,153$    6,011,081$      

       Restricted 10,190,243      13,608,946      

Total cash 33,312,396$    19,620,027$    
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Interest Rate Risk 
 
In accordance with its investment policy, the District manages its exposure to declines in fair 
value by limiting the maximum maturity of its investment portfolio to one year or less. 
 
Credit Risk 
 
The District does not have a formally adopted policy for credit risk in regards to its 
investments. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The District’s investment policy requires that at least $1 million be held outside of the LGIP 
and in accordance with State of Oregon statutes. 

 
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits and Investments 
 
For deposits, custodial credit risk is the risk of loss of funds due to the event of a bank failure. 
In order to minimize this risk, ORS Chapter 295 governs the collateralization of certain 
Oregon public funds, including requiring that banks holding public funds become members 
of the Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP), a multiple financial institution 
collateral pool created by the Office of the State Treasurer. All banks holding funds in the 
District’s name were properly included on the list of qualified depositories maintained by the 
Oregon State Treasurer. 
 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the 
counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the value of its investments or 
collateralized securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The District’s 
investment policy limits the types of investments that may be held, requires all investments 
purchased to be held in the District’s name, and does not allow securities to be held by the 
counterparty. 
 
A portion of the District’s funds are invested in an external investment pool.  The Local 
Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is an open-ended, diversified portfolio offered to eligible 
participants including Oregon municipalities and political subdivisions.  The Oregon State 
Treasurer’s Office manages the LGIP in the same manner it oversees the management of 
the State’s funds and in accordance with the prudent investor rule.  The LGIP is commingled 
with the State’s short-term funds in the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF).  Investments of 
the LGIP are governed by portfolio guidelines issued by the OSTF, which establishes 
diversification percentages and specifies the types and maturities of investments.  The OSTF 
is not managed as a stable net asset value fund, and it is not currently rated by an 
independent rating agency.  The OSTF is an external investment pool as defined by GASB 
Statement No. 59. The net asset value per share is calculated by the Oregon State 
Treasurer’s Office and approximates fair value.  The LGIP is not registered with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission.  The State’s investment policies are governed by 
Oregon Revised Statutes and the Oregon Investment Council (Council).  The State 
Treasurer is the investment officer for the Council.  Investments in the LGIP are further 
governed by portfolio guidelines issued by the Fund Board. 
 
The Oregon Audits Division of the Secretary of State’s office audits the OSTF annually.  The 
Division’s report on the OSTF, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016 was unmodified 
and may been obtained online at the State of Oregon’s website at www.oregon.gov. 
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(b) Receivables 

 
Accounts 
 
Unrestricted accounts receivable at June 30 consisted of the following: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Taxes 
 
Unrestricted taxes receivable at June 30 consisted of the following: 
 
 

 
 

 
Grants 
 
Grants receivable at June 30 consisted of the following: 
 
 

 
 

  

2016 2015

Passenger fares 376,100$         237,487$           
Medicaid reimbursement 23,283             172,724             
Medicaid nonmedical reimbursement 188,918           173,018             
Medicaid developmental disability reimbursement 715,630           365,157             
Miscellaneous 252,658           24,902               
Total accounts receivable 1,556,589$      973,288$           

2016 2015
Employer payroll taxes 8,690,835$      9,265,912$        
Self-employment taxes 70,222             51,007               
Total unrestricted 8,761,057$      9,316,919$        

2016 2015
Unrestricted federal grants 6,460,725$      22,767,237$      
Unrestricted state grants 181,953           27,527               
Total unrestricted grants 6,642,678        22,794,764        
Grants restricted for Accessible Services and Medicaid 774,134           607,376             
Total grants receivable 7,416,812$      23,402,140$      
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 (c) Restricted Assets 
 
Restricted assets consist of current assets that are restricted for Accessible Services and 
Medicaid programs. 
 
The components of the restricted assets, liabilities payable from restricted assets, and 
restricted net positions as of June 30, 2016, were as follows: 
 
 

 

 
The components of the restricted assets, liabilities payable from restricted assets, and 
restricted net positions as of June 30, 2015, were as follows: 
 
 

 
 
 

  

 Accessible 

Services and 

Medicaid  Capital Projects  Total 

Restricted assets
Cash and investments 2,159,158$      8,031,085$       10,190,243$    
Accounts receivable 927,831           -                    927,831           
Federal and state grants receivable 774,134           -                    774,134           

Total restricted assets 3,861,123        8,031,085         11,892,208      

Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Accounts payable (860,010)          -                    (860,010)          
Unearned revenue (225,336)          (8,031,085)        (8,256,421)       

Total liabilities payable from restricted assets (1,085,346)       (8,031,085)        (9,116,431)       

Total net restricted assets 2,775,776$      -$                  2,775,776$      

 Accessible 

Services and 

Medicaid  Capital Projects  Total 

Restricted assets
Cash and investments 405,058$         13,203,888$     13,608,946$    
Accounts receivable 713,400           -                        713,400           
Federal and state grants receivable 607,376           -                        607,376           

Total restricted assets 1,725,834        13,203,888       14,929,722      

Liabilities payable from restricted assets
Accounts payable (771,698)          -                        (771,698)          
Unearned revenue (513,863)          (13,203,888)      (13,717,751)     

Total liabilities payable from restricted assets (1,285,561)       (13,203,888)      (14,489,449)     

Total net restricted assets 440,273$         -$                      440,273$         
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(d) Capital Assets 
 
Major classes of property and equipment and accumulated depreciation as of June 30, 2016 
and 2015: 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 
The federal government retains a reversionary interest in property and equipment to the 
extent that capital grants provided for their purchase. Upon disposal of property and 
equipment, a prorated share of proceeds, if any, is returned to the federal government. 
 
There is no property and equipment under capital lease. 
 

2016
 Balance

7/1/15 

 FY 15-16 
Additions or 
Expenses 

FY 15-16 
Disposals Transfers Balance 6/30/16

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
    Land 12,057,496$           -$                    -$                -$                12,057,496$        
    Public art 366,917                  -                      -                  -                  366,917               
    Construction in progress 26,809,415             34,710,131         -                  -                  61,519,546          
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 39,233,828             34,710,131         -                  -                  73,943,959          

Capital assets, being depreciated:
    Busways 46,970,779             -                      -                  -                  46,970,779          
    Rolling stock and related equipment 54,863,568             7,325,024           (684,397)         -                  61,504,195          
    Stations, shelters, and bus signs 20,440,493             266,524              -                  -                  20,707,017          
    Buildings and improvements 40,740,633             1,911,915           -                  -                  42,652,548          
    Accessible Services vehicles 5,437,618               878,810              (487,168)         -                  5,829,260            
    Other equipment and support vehicles 11,867,574             1,071,780           (20,552)           -                  12,918,802          
Total capital assets, being depreciated 180,320,665           11,454,052         (1,192,117)      -                  190,582,600        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
    Busways 14,881,950             2,346,127           -                  -                  17,228,077          
    Rolling stock and related equipment 31,623,166             4,072,174           (680,397)         -                  35,014,943          
    Stations, shelters, and bus signs 11,211,713             1,316,328           -                  -                  12,528,041          
    Buildings and improvements 22,437,843             1,587,154           -                  -                  24,024,997          
    Accessible Services vehicles 4,401,772               576,293              (478,613)         -                  4,499,452            
    Other equipment and support vehicles 9,550,802               1,231,626           (15,538)           -                  10,766,891          
Total accumulated depreciation 94,107,246             11,129,703         (1,174,548)      -                  104,062,401        

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 86,213,419             324,349              (17,569)           -                  86,520,199          

Total capital assets, net 125,447,247$         35,034,481$       (17,569)$         -$                160,464,158$      

2015
 Balance

7/1/14 

 FY 14-15 
Additions or 
Expenses 

FY 14-15 
Disposals Transfers Balance 6/30/15

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
    Land 8,708,370$              3,349,126$          -$                     -$                     12,057,496$         
    Public art 366,917                   -                          -                       -                       366,917                
    Construction in progress 11,253,541              15,825,997          (258)                 (269,865)          26,809,415           
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 20,328,828              19,175,123          (258)                 (269,865)          39,233,828           

Capital assets, being depreciated:
    Busways 46,925,623              43,861                 -                       1,295               46,970,779           
    Rolling stock and related equipment 53,961,499              2,861,710            (2,033,700)       74,059             54,863,568           
    Stations, shelters, and bus signs 20,352,377              137,336               (40,867)            (8,353)              20,440,493           
    Buildings and improvements 40,544,073              172,500               -                       24,060             40,740,633           
    Accessible Services vehicles 5,520,821                124,908               (208,111)          -                       5,437,618             
    Other equipment and support vehicles 12,001,037              754,096               (1,066,363)       178,804           11,867,574           
Total capital assets, being depreciated 179,305,430            4,094,411            (3,349,041)       269,865           180,320,665         

Less accumulated depreciation for:
    Busways 12,535,823              2,346,127            -                       -                       14,881,950           
    Rolling stock and related equipment 29,356,435              4,300,431            (2,033,700)       -                       31,623,166           
    Stations, shelters, and bus signs 9,926,304                1,326,276            (40,867)            -                       11,211,713           
    Buildings and improvements 20,864,818              1,573,025            -                       -                       22,437,843           
    Accessible Services vehicles 4,129,519                480,364               (208,111)          -                       4,401,772             
    Other equipment and support vehicles 9,483,455                1,126,210            (1,058,863)       -                       9,550,802             
Total accumulated depreciation 86,296,354              11,152,433          (3,341,541)       -                       94,107,246           

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 93,009,076              (7,058,022)          (7,500)              269,865           86,213,419           

Total capital assets, net 113,337,904$          12,117,101$        (7,758)$            -$                     125,447,247$       
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(e) Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Liabilities 
 
Accrued vacation and sick leave payable at June 30 consisted of the following: 

 
 

 
 

 
4. Other Information 
 

(a) Pension Benefits 
 

The District contributes to two single-employer public employee retirement plans.  The Lane 
Transit District Salaried Employees’ Retirement Plan (LTDSP) covers all nonunion 
employees.  The Lane Transit District and Amalgamated Transit Union, Local No. 757, 
Pension Trust (LTD ATU Pension Trust) covers all union employees. 

Each plan’s assets are held in trust, independent of the District, and solely for the purpose 
of paying each plan’s benefits and administrative expenses.  The plans are not included in 
the reporting entity of the District.  The assets are invested in a variety of stocks, bonds, and 
other securities.  Neither plan includes in its assets any District securities nor securities of 
any related parties.  No loans have been granted to the District from plan funds. 

Lane Transit District Salaried Employee’s Retirement Plan  
(plan entrants prior to January 1, 2012) 

 Plan Description 

The Lane Transit District Salaried Employees’ Retirement Plan (LTDSP) combines a defined 
benefit plan (Part 1) and a defined contribution plan (Part 2) for all participants who entered 
the plan prior to January 1, 2012.  Part 1 and Part 2 of the LTDSP are now closed to new 
participants. 

2016 2015
Accrued vacation and sick leave payable at 
    beginning of period 2,683,141$ 2,645,780$ 

Total vacation accrued for period 1,157,615   1,418,186   
Total sick leave accrued for period 350,914      484,444      
Total vacation taken for period (1,442,658)  (1,387,460)  
Total sick leave taken for period (482,968)     (469,236)     
Total sick leave lost for period (177,403)     (8,573)         
Accrued vacation and sick leave payable at 
    end of period 2,088,642$ 2,683,141$ 

Vacation time - union-represented employees 887,339$    1,034,226$ 
Combined annual leave - nonunion employees 467,312      605,468      
Sick leave - union-represented employees 499,179      600,519      
Extended illness bank - nonunion employees 234,812      442,928      
Total accrued vacation and sick leave 2,088,642$ 2,683,141$ 

Current portion vacation and sick leave 570,869$    847,773$    
Noncurrent vacation and sick leave 1,517,773   1,835,368   
Total 2,088,642$ 2,683,141$ 
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The LTDSP is contained in a plan document that was originally adopted effective July 1, 
1975, was amended on several subsequent occasions, was last restated effective July 1, 
2011, and was last amended on April 12, 2013. 

The plan is administered by three appointed trustees, including a member of the Lane Transit 
District Board of Directors, and the General Manager and the Assistant General Manager of 
LTD. 

The LTDSP Part 1 provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to participants and 
beneficiaries and covers all District nonunion employees hired before January 1, 2012. 

 Benefits Provided 

Plan members are eligible to receive a full monthly benefit, payable for life, once they reach 
62 years of age and have earned five years of vesting credit, or at any age with 30 years of 
vesting credit.  Reduced benefits are available to plan members who retire at or after age 55 
but before age 62 with five years of vesting credit, or at age 62 with less than five years of 
vesting credit. 

Annual benefits are calculated as the higher of the following: 

1.  The number of years of benefit credit times average annual salary (determined for the 
36 consecutive calendar months of employment that produce the highest average 
annual salary) times 1.67 percent; or 

2.  The number of years of benefit credit (not exceeding 25) times average annual salary 
times 3 percent, less the plan member’s Primary Social Security Benefit; or 

3. The benefit calculated under this plan in effect as of June 30, 1989, and determined as 
of that date, if applicable 

Unused sick leave is included as a component of compensation, which increases the annual 
retirement benefit. Ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments (most recently in 1998) have been 
provided to members and beneficiaries at the discretion of the District's Board of Directors. 

Under LTDSP Part 2, the District contributes to an account, invested at the plan member's 
direction, 6 percent of a member’s compensation for each payroll period that begins after six 
calendar months of employment.  For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, employer 
contributions to this plan recognized as expense were $394,139 and $313,854, respectively. 

Plan members are immediately vested in their LTDSP Part 2 employer-contribution 
accounts. 
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Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms as of the most recent actuarial 
valuation: 

 
 

 
 

 

 
Contributions 

The funding policy for the LTDSP Part 1 is established and may be amended by the District’s 
Board of Directors.  Contributions to the plan are made biweekly according to an actuarially 
determined rate recommended by an independent actuary.  This rate is intended to finance 
the cost of current benefits earned, plus an amount to finance the unfunded accrued liability.  
This rate, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, was 12.5 percent for the years 
ended June 30, 2016 and 2015.  The District makes an additional level dollar contribution to 
further reduce the unfunded accrued liability.  For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
that amount was $672,479 and $797,484, respectively. 

Net Pension Liability 

The District’s net pension liability for the LTDSP Part 1 at June 30, 2016, was measured as 
of that date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015. 

The District’s net pension liability for the LTDSP Part 1 at June 30, 2015, was measured as 
of that date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2013. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2015, actuarial valuation was determined using the 
following actuarial assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

 
 

Inflation Rate    2.75% 
Salary increases   Age based, with ultimate rate of 3% 
Investment rate of return, net  6.50% 
Mortality RP-2014 Mortality Tables with White 

Collar adjustment 
 

 
The LTDSP Part 1 does not provide for automatic, post-retirement benefit increases. 
However, the District's Board of Directors has adopted ad hoc increases from time to time 
(most recently in 1998). 

  

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 67       

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 41       

Active employees 54       

162     
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected based on 
the plan’s target asset allocation as of the valuation date combined with capital market 
assumptions from several sources, including published studies summarizing the 
expectations of various investment experts.  Following are the target asset allocation 
percentages set by policy and expected arithmetic real rates of return: 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.50 percent as of June 30, 
2016.  A reduction of the discount rate from 7.25 percent as of June 30, 2015, resulted in an 
increase in the total pension liability of $2,952,420, as shown below.  The projection of cash 
flows used to determine the discount rate were based on the District’s funding policy.  Based 
on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees.  Therefore, 
the long-term expected rate of return on investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

  

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Large Cap U.S. Equities 9.5% 8.70%
Small/Mid Cap Global Equities 15.5% 6.40%
Domestic Equities - Full Market 3.0% 9.50%
Non-U.S. Equities 22.0% 4.10%
Fixed Income 20.0% 3.90%
Real Return (all asset strategies) 20.0% 4.90%
Global Tactical Asset Allocation (GTAA) 10.0% 5.20%
Total 100.0%
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using a discount 
rate of 6.50 percent and 7.25 percent, as well as what the District’s net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one 
percentage point higher than the rate used: 

 
 

 
 

 

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net Pension 
Liability

Balances at 6/30/15 21,670,536$               15,857,188$               5,813,348$                

Changes for the year:
Service cost 521,040                       ‐                               521,040                      

Interest 1,564,487                   ‐                               1,564,487                  

Differences between expected and actual experience 99,443                         ‐                               99,443                        

Changes of assumptions 2,952,420                   ‐                               2,952,420                  

Employer contributions ‐                               1,174,309                   (1,174,309)                 

Net investment income ‐                               (361,265)                     361,265                      

Benefit payments (1,182,843)                  (1,182,843)                  ‐                              

Administrative expense ‐                               (105,822)                     105,822                      

Other changes ‐                               ‐                               ‐                              

Net changes 3,954,547                   (475,621)                     4,430,168                  

Balances at 6/30/16 25,625,083$               15,381,567$               10,243,516$              

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net Pension 
Liability

Balances at 6/30/14 20,803,151$               15,539,800$               5,263,351$                

Changes for the year:
Service cost 545,340                       ‐                               545,340                      

Interest 1,504,888                   ‐                               1,504,888                  

Employer contributions ‐                               1,333,241                   (1,333,241)                 

Net investment income ‐                               222,900                       (222,900)                    

Benefit payments (1,182,843)                  (1,182,843)                  ‐                              

Administrative expense ‐                               (55,910)                        55,910                        

Net changes 867,385                       317,388                       549,997                      

Balances at 6/30/15 21,670,536$               15,857,188$               5,813,348$                

Increase (Decrease)

Increase (Decrease)

Net Pension Liability
2016

1% decrease (5.50%) 13,125,211$        
Current discount rate (6.50%) 10,243,516          
1% increase (7.50%) 7,797,617            

2015

1% decrease (6.25%) 8,112,302            
Current discount rate (7.25%) 5,813,348            
1% increase (8.25%) 3,839,798            
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a 
separately issued LTDSP financial report.  A copy of that report can be obtained by writing 
to: Trustees of the Lane Transit District Salaried Employees’ Retirement Plan, P.O. Box 
7070, Springfield, Oregon 97475-0470. 

 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the District recognized pension expense of 
$1,199,044 and $1,181,126, respectively. The District reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources 
at June 30: 
 
 

 

 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

 
 

 
 

 
  

Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

2016

Differences between expected and actual experience -$               114,548$        
Changes in assumptions or inputs -                 1,970,289       
Net difference between projected and actual earnings -                 1,304,032       

-$               3,388,869$     

2015

Differences between expected and actual experience -$               151,858          
Changes in assumptions or inputs -                 216,913          
Net difference between projected and actual earnings -                 59,042            

-$               427,813$        

Year ended June 30:
2017 1,473,127$           
2018 1,132,212             
2019 482,481                
2020 301,049                
2021 -                        
Thereafter -                        
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Lane Transit District Salaried Employee’s Defined Contribution Program 
 
Plan Description 

The Lane Transit District Salaried Employees’ Defined Contribution Program became 
effective on January 1, 2012.  All nonunion employees hired after December 31, 2011, are 
eligible to participate. 
 
Benefits Provided 

This program provides contributions to a discretionary account and the opportunity to receive 
contributions to a matching account.  The discretionary contribution made by the District is 
currently between 4.5 percent and 9 percent, depending on the number of years of vesting 
service completed.  The matching contribution percentage is currently set at 50 percent of a 
participant’s elective contribution (to a Section 457 deferred compensation account) up to a 
maximum of 3 percent of their base pay.  For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
employer contributions recognized as expense were $161,457 and $119,435, respectively. 
 
Participants are immediately vested in their own contributions.  They become vested in the 
discretionary and matching contributions according to a graduated schedule over 7 years.  
Nonvested contributions are forfeited upon termination of employment and are used to offset 
future contributions, thereby reducing expense recognized by the District. 
 
Lane Transit District and Amalgamated Transit Union, 
Local No. 757, Pension Trust 
 

 Plan Description 
 

The LTD ATU Pension Trust provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan 
members and beneficiaries and covers all District union employees.  The plan was created 
effective March 1, 1972, by collective bargaining agreement, was amended on several 
subsequent occasions, and was last amended on January 1, 2015. 

The plan is administered by four appointed trustees, including a member of the Lane Transit 
District Board of Directors; the general manager of LTD; the president (or designee) of the 
ATU, Local No. 757; and an executive board officer of ATU, Local No. 757. 

 Benefits Provided 
 

Participation begins after six months of employment.  Benefits are 100 percent vested when 
the plan member earns five years of credited service or is an employee while age 60 or older.  
Vested plan members who retire at or after age 60, and plan members who terminate 
employment after June 30, 2000, with 30 years of credited service, are entitled to a monthly 
retirement benefit for life, with a minimum of 36 monthly payments made to the plan member 
or the member's beneficiary. The retirement benefit for plan members terminating 
employment on or after July 1, 2014, is $65.50 per month per year of credited service.  This 
multiplier is scheduled to increase in annual increments, eventually reaching $70 per month 
per year of credited service for members terminating employment on or after January 1, 
2017.  Increases to the multiplier after December 31, 2015, only apply to service in future 
years.  Plan members with ten years of credited service may also retire with a reduced 
benefit as early as age 55.  One year of credited service is earned for the first 1,600 hours 
in a calendar year.  Hours are hours worked before June 30, 1994, and compensated hours 
after June 30, 1994. 
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Partial credit of 0.25 of a year of credited service is earned for every 400 hours, up to 1,600 
hours, in a calendar year.  Unused sick leave does not increase the monthly retirement 
benefit or convert to any other pension benefit. 

An Employee Participation Account is kept for each participant.  After December 31, 2000, 
the Employee Participation Account is credited with $.10 per compensated hour.  The value 
of the Employee Participation Account is adjusted once a plan year by an investment rate of 
return chosen by the trustees.  The Employee Participation Account is paid to a plan member 
who terminates employment before age 60 with at least three, but less than five, years of 
credited service and is paid as a preretirement death benefit to the beneficiary of a married 
plan member who dies with at least three, but less than five, years of credited service or to 
the beneficiary of an unmarried plan member who dies with at least three years of credited 
service. 

 
 Employees Covered by Benefit Terms 
 

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms as of the most recent actuarial 
valuation: 

 
 

 
 

 
 Contributions 

The funding policy of the LTD ATU Pension Trust is established and may be amended by 
the District’s Board of Directors in compliance with the terms of the current Working and 
Wage Agreement between the ATU and the District. 

Contributions are made according to an actuarially determined rate recommended by an 
independent actuary that is intended to finance the cost of current benefits earned, plus an 
amount to finance the unfunded accrued liability.  This rate, expressed as an amount per 
compensable hour, was $5.03 and $4.89 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively. Actual contributions by the District were made at a higher rate of $4.89 for the 
year ended June 30, 2014, in order to accelerate the reduction of the unfunded accrued 
liability. 

No employee contributions are required or permitted. 

Net Pension Liability 

The District’s net pension liability for the LTD ATU Pension Trust at June 30, 2016, was 
measured as of December 31, 2015, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2014. 

The District’s net pension liability for the LTD ATU Pension Trust at June 30, 2014, was 
measured as of December 31, 2013, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2012. 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 199
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 41
Active employees 243

483
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 

The total pension liability in the January 1, 2014, actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 
 

 
     

Inflation rate   3.00% 
Salary increases   3.00% 
Future benefit rate increases 3.00% 
Investment rate of return, net 7.25% 
Mortality RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with 

Blue Collar Adjustment, projected to 2015 using 
Scale AA 

 
 

 

 
Ad hoc cost-of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries at the 
discretion of the trustees. The trustees last adopted an ad hoc increase of 2 percent on 
January 1, 2006. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected based on 
the plan’s target asset allocation as of the valuation date, combined with capital market 
assumptions from several sources, including published studies summarizing the 
expectations of various investment experts.  Following is the target asset allocation 
percentage set by policy and expected real rates of return: 
 

 
 

 
 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate were based on the District’s 
funding policy.  Based on those assumptions, the plan’s fiduciary net position was projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
employees.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

  

Asset Class
Target 

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Large Cap U.S. Equities 9.5% 8.70%
Small/Mid Cap Global Equities 15.5% 6.40%
Domestic Equities - Full Market 3.0% 9.50%
Non-U.S. Equities 22.0% 4.10%
Fixed Income 20.0% 3.90%
Real Return (all asset strategies) 20.0% 4.90%
Global Tactical Asset Allocation (GTAA) 10.0% 5.20%
Total 100.0%
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability 
 
 

 
 

1A new working and wage agreement was ratified in July 2014 under which the benefits multiplier for service 
through December 31, 2015, was increased to $65.50 per month per year of credited service for plan 
members terminating employment on or after July 1, 2014.  This multiplier is scheduled to increase 
annually, eventually reaching $70 per month per year of credited service for members terminating 
employment on or after January 1, 2017. 

 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the District, calculated using a discount 
rate of 7.25 percent as well as what the District’s net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point 
higher than the rate used: 
 
 
 

 
 

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net Pension 
Liability

Balances at 6/30/15  $         34,611,469  $         22,926,424  $       11,685,045 

Changes for the year:
Service cost                  794,155                            -                  794,155 
Interest               2,495,722                            -               2,495,722 
Employer contributions                            -                 2,309,003            (2,309,003)
Net investment income                            -                  (577,624)                577,624 
Benefit payments             (1,963,737)             (1,963,737)                          -   
Administrative expense                            -                    (70,779)                  70,779 
Other changes                            -                              -                            -   

Net changes               1,326,140                (303,137)             1,629,277 

Balances at 6/30/16  $         35,937,609  $         22,623,287  $       13,314,322 

Total Pension 
Liability

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position

Net Pension 
Liability

Balances at 6/30/14 33,540,315$         21,726,577$         11,813,738$        

Changes for the year:
Service cost 853,018                -                        853,018               
Interest 2,424,057             -                        2,424,057            
Changes of benefit terms 356,341                -                        356,341               

Differences between expected and actual (646,134)               -                        (646,134)              
Employer contributions -                        2,222,585             (2,222,585)           
Net investment income -                        1,008,693             (1,008,693)           
Benefit payments (1,916,128)            (1,916,128)            -                       
Administrative expense -                        (115,303)               115,303               

Net changes 1,071,154             1,199,847             (128,693)              

Balances at 6/30/15 34,611,469$         22,926,424$         11,685,045$        

Increase (Decrease)

Increase (Decrease)

2016 2015
1% decrease (6.25%)  $          16,849,208  $          15,089,489 
Current discount rate (7.25%) 13,314,322            11,685,045            
1% increase (8.25%) 10,259,992            8,743,423              

Net Pension Liability
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Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a 
separately issued LTD ATU Pension Trust financial report.  A copy of that report can be 
obtained by writing to: Trustees of the Lane Transit District and Amalgamated Transit Union, 
Local No. 757, Pension Trust, P.O. Box 7070, Springfield, Oregon 97475-0470. 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the District recognized pension expense of 
$1,882,483 and $1,910,608, respectively.  The District reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources 
at June 30: 
 
 

 

 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

 

 
 

 

  

2016
Deferred 
Inflows of 

Resources

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience 351,796$       -$              
Net difference between projected and actual earnings -                1,696,161      
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date -                1,182,684      

351,796$       2,878,845$    

2015

Differences between expected and actual experience 499,285$       -$              
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 212,787         -                
Contributions made subsequent to measurement date -                1,112,696      

712,072$       1,112,696$    

Year ended June 30:
2017 193,943$    
2018 193,943      
2019 505,891      
2020 449,948      
2021 -             
Thereafter -             
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Lane Transit District and Amalgamated Transit Union, 
Local No. 757, Defined Contribution Program 
 
Plan Description 

Lane Transit District and Amalgamated Transit Union, Local No. 757, Defined Contribution 
Program became effective on July 6, 2014.  All union employees who are eligible for the 
defined benefit program above are eligible to participate in this program. 
 
Benefits Provided 

This program provides employer contributions to a matching account based on a 
participant’s elective contribution to a Section 457 deferred compensation account.  The 
matching contribution is currently set at 50 percent of the participant’s elective contribution, 
up to a maximum of 3 percent of their base pay.  For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 
2015, employer contributions recognized as expense were $292,893 and $189,759, 
respectively. 
 
Participants are immediately vested in their matching account.  Forfeitures of contributions, 
arising from the inability to locate a valid beneficiary, are used to offset future contributions, 
thereby reducing expense recognized by the District. 
 

(b) Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 

 Plan Description 
 
The District administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan per the 
requirements of collective bargaining agreements, which are applied uniformly to all 
employees. The plan provides an explicit employer-paid benefit, according to the option 
chosen by the retiree, as follows: 
 

 Up to $275 per month per pre-Medicare retiree until the retiree becomes eligible for 
Medicare, typically age 65.  Once they become Medicare-eligible the benefit reduces 
to $125 per month; or 

 
 $425 per month until the retiree becomes Medicare eligible, at which time the benefit 

reduces to zero. 
 
This benefit can be used towards post-retirement healthcare insurance premiums or other 
healthcare costs of the retiree, their spouse, domestic partner, or eligible dependents. 
Retirees are allowed to continue District-sponsored insurance coverage or use their benefit 
to obtain coverage from a carrier of their choice. 
 
The District’s post-retirement healthcare plan was established in accordance with Oregon 
Revised Statutes (ORS) 243.303.  ORS stipulates that for the purpose of establishing 
healthcare premiums, the rate must be based on all plan members, including both active 
employees and retirees.  The difference between retiree claims costs (which because of the 
effect of age is generally higher in comparison to all plan members) and the amount of retiree 
healthcare premiums represents the District’s implicit employer contribution, which is a 
liability in addition to the employer-paid benefit described above. 
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The District has not established a trust fund to supplement the costs for the net other post-
employment benefit (OPEB) obligation.  No stand-alone financial report is generated for the 
plan. 
 
At the January 1, 2016, actuarial valuation date, there were 135 retirees receiving benefits 
under the plan and 329 active employees who may be eligible for future retirement benefits. 
 

 Funding Policy 
 
The annual required contribution (ARC) for the plan is an amount calculated to prefund future 
benefits as determined by the actuary.  The District has elected not to prefund the actuarially 
determined future cost, choosing instead to finance the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.  The 
District contributes all benefits listed above to individual VEBA accounts from which the 
retiree is responsible for paying eligible premiums and costs. 

 
 Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation 

 
The District’s annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the 
annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an amount actuarially determined in 
accordance with the guidelines of GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and 
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. 
 
The District’s annual OPEB cost and net OPEB obligation for the fiscal years ended June 30 
were as follows: 
 
 

 
 

  
 Funding Status and Funding Progress 

 
The plan’s funded status as of January 1, 2016, the most recent actuarial valuation date, is 
shown below: 

 
 

 
 

2016 2015 2014

Annual required contribution 1,154,343$        1,115,276$       1,136,911$       
Interest earned on net OPEB obligation 144,236             128,076            108,624            
Adjustment to the annual required contribution (357,811)           (317,722)          (269,466)          
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 940,768             925,630            976,069            
Contribution made (545,614)           (463,915)          (420,292)          
Increase in net OPEB obligation 395,154             461,715            555,777            
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 4,121,038          3,659,323         3,103,546         
Net OPEB obligation, end of year 4,516,192$        4,121,038$       3,659,323$       

Percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed 58.0% 50.1% 43.1%

Actuarial value of assets -$                                 
Actuarial accrued liability 7,442,049                         

Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 7,442,049$                       
Funded ratio 0%
Covered payroll 17,205,055                       
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 43.3%
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The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
 

 Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
Projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the 
plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and plan members to that point.  The actuarial valuations for OPEB 
plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of events far into the future.  Actuarially determined amounts are subject to 
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made 
about the future. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are 
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
Significant methods and assumptions for the latest actuarial valuation were as follows: 
 

 
 

Actuarial valuation date  January 1, 2016 
Actuarial cost method   Projected unit credit 
Amortization method   Level dollar, open 
Remaining amortization period  15 years 
 
Actuarial assumptions: 
   Investment rate of return  3.5% 
   General inflation rate   2.75% 
   Projected salary increases  N/A 
   Healthcare inflation rate  5.85% initial, 4.75% ultimate 
 

 
The projected unit credit method attempts to track the actual economic pattern of benefit 
accrual over an employee’s working lifetime.  The discount rate is selected based on the 
expected long-term annual investment returns for Oregon’s Local Government Investment 
Pool and comparable investment vehicles. 

 
(c) Risk Management 

 
Risk is managed through a combination of purchased commercial insurance coverage and 
self-insurance with risk reserves.  There has been no significant reduction in insurance 
coverage during the year.  The limits are consistent with coverage carried by other public 
entities of the District’s size and type in Oregon. 
 
Oregon tort liability law generally limits claims for one incident to $1,925,500.  Additional 
coverage is for federal claims, out-of-state claims, or contractual liability.  This coverage is 
tabulated as follows: 
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The greatest risk exposure for the District is in vehicle liability.  The District self-insures up 
to $100,000 per accident.  The level of risk reserving is set by Board policy considering both 
the history of payments and the potential exposure to risk.  The reserve level is evaluated 
and the reserve amount is budgeted during the annual budget process.  Current Board policy 
sets this amount at $1,000,000.  In the last three fiscal years, no settlements have exceeded 
the limits of insurance coverage. 
 
Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the 
loss reasonably can be estimated.  Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been 
incurred but not reported (IBNR).  Claim liabilities are set by an independent firm. 
 
These liabilities are calculated considering the effects of inflation, recent claim settlement 
trends (including frequency and amount of payouts), and other economic and social factors. 

 
Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past three years are as follows: 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Unpaid claims are carried at estimated gross settlement value. 

 
(d) Commitments and Contingencies 

 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 27, 2017, the date on which 
the financial statements were available to be issued. Management is aware of a subsequent 
event that requires recognition in the financial statements. A correction to two customer 
accounts resulted in an adjustment to the District’s accounts receivable, grants receivable, 
and the total revenue balances after the financial statements date for year ending June 30, 
2016. As of June 30, 2016 the accounts receivable balance and grants receivable balance 
was $1.8 million and $7.2 million, respectively and the total revenue balance was $99.7 
million. After the correction that occurred February 21, 2017, the accounts receivable 

Description
Retention Level 

(Deductible)
Limits of

Coverage
Vehicle liability / uninsured motorist 100,000$                 10,000,000$        
Property and contents 25,000                     29,762,949          
General and tort liability 25,000                     10,000,000          
Bus - physical damage 50,000                     Stated value
Earthquake / flood Greater of $5,000 or 

2% of covered loss
15,000,000          

Pollution liability (fuel storage tanks) 10,000                     1,000,000            
Public employee blanket 1,000                       250,000               
Workers' compensation N/A 500,000               

2016 2015 2014
Unpaid claims and claim adjustment 
  expenses, beginning of the year 78,600$      143,540$ 89,540$   
Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 31,487        90,832     150,755   
Claim payments (87,632)       (155,772)  (96,755)    
Total unpaid claims and claim adjustment
  expenses, end of the year 22,455$      78,600$   143,540$ 

Automobile/Bus Liability
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balance is $1.6 million, the grants receivable balance is $6.3 million and the total revenue 
balance is $98.5 million. 
 
Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and costs may be 
questioned as not being appropriate under the terms of the grants.  Such audits could lead 
to reimbursement to the grantor agencies.  District management believes disallowance, if 
any, will be immaterial. 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the District had commitments of approximately $36.5 million for 
construction, utility relocation, right-of-way acquisition and the purchase of vehicles related 
to the West Eugene EmX Extension. 
 
The District will implement new GASB pronouncements no later than the required fiscal year. 
Management has not determined the effect on the financial statements from implementing 
any of the following pronouncements: 
 
 GASB Statement No. 74, “Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other 

Than Pension Plans.”  This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 
2016. 

 GASB Statement No. 75, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions.”  This statement is effective for fiscal years beginning 
after June 15, 2017. 

 GASB Statement No. 76, “The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 
for State and Local Governments.”  This statement is effective for reporting periods 
beginning after June 15, 2015. 

 GASB Statement No. 77, “Tax Abatement Disclosures.”  This statement is effective for 
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015.  
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(f) Expenditures as Appropriated 
 

The presentation of the budget to actual schedules in the supplemental information section 
of the financial statements differs in format from the appropriations adopted by the Board of 
Directors.  The following table shows the appropriated expenditures for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 2016, as adopted: 
 
 

 
 

Original Final Actual Variance

General Fund
Transit Services 42,583,100$     42,583,100$     39,310,213$     3,272,887$       
Transfer to Accessible Services Fund 2,586,900         2,586,900         1,578,796         1,008,104         
Transfer to Medicaid Fund 195,000            440,000            657,537            (217,537)           
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 1,667,600         1,667,600         1,667,600         -                    
Contingencies 16,075,700       15,830,700       -                    15,830,700       

Accessible Services Fund
Transit Services 6,931,200         6,931,200         6,030,907         900,293            
Contingencies 130,000            130,000            -                    130,000            

Medicaid Fund
Transit Services 9,411,600         10,561,600       10,737,402       (175,802)           
Contingencies 134,200            -                    -                    -                    

Capital Projects Fund
Capital Outlay 91,931,700       91,931,700       47,460,504       44,471,196       
Capital Reserve 8,955,400         8,955,400         -                    8,955,400         

Budgeted Amounts

Page 57



This page intentionally left blank. 

Page 58



 

 

 

Required Supplementary 
Information 

Page 59



This page intentionally left blank. 

Page 60



20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

20
12

T
ot

al
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
S

er
vi

ce
 c

os
t

52
1,
04

0
$ 
   
   
   
 

54
5,
34

0
$ 
   
   
   
 

53
8,
08

8
$ 
   
   
   
 

52
7,
53

7
$ 
   
   
   
 

‐
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

In
te

re
st

1,
56

4,
48

7
   
   
   
 

1,
50

4,
88

8
   
   
   
 

1,
42

6,
18

2
   
   
   
 

1,
34

3,
93

8
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f b

en
ef

it 
te

rm
s

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e
99

,4
43

   
   
   
   
   

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

35
4,
33

4
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
2,
95

2,
42

0
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

50
6,
12

9
   
   
   
   
 

2
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

B
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

(1
,2
24

,8
98

)
   
   
  

(1
,1
82

,8
43

)
   
   
  

(9
39

,4
85

)
   
   
   
   

(6
90

,4
18

)
   
   
   
   

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 to

ta
l p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
3,
91

2,
49

2
   
   
   
 

86
7,
38

5
   
   
   
   
 

1,
88

5,
24

8
   
   
   
 

1,
18

1,
05

7
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

T
ot

al
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 -

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
21

,6
70

,5
36

   
   
 

20
,8
03

,1
51

   
   
 

18
,9
17

,9
03

   
   
 

17
,7
36

,8
46

   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

T
ot

al
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 -

 e
nd

in
g

25
,5
83

,0
28

$ 
   
 

21
,6
70

,5
36

$ 
   
 

20
,8
03

,1
51

$ 
   
 

18
,9
17

,9
03

$ 
   
 

17
,7
36

,8
46

$ 
   
 

P
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
E

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
1,
17

4,
30

9
$ 
   
   

1,
33

3,
24

1
$ 
   
   

1,
16

1,
60

9
$ 
   
   

1,
16

5,
56

5
$ 
   
   

‐
$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

N
et

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e
(3
61

,2
65

)
   
   
   
   

22
2,
90

0
   
   
   
   
 

2,
08

1,
97

1
   
   
   
 

1,
29

8,
74

6
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

B
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

(1
,2
24

,8
98

)
   
   
  

(1
,1
82

,8
43

)
   
   
  

(9
39

,4
85

)
   
   
   
   

(6
90

,4
18

)
   
   
   
   

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

ex
pe

ns
e

(1
05

,8
22

)
   
   
   
   

(5
5,
91

0)
   
   
   
   
  

(8
7,
86

0)
   
   
   
   
  

(9
2,
28

2)
   
   
   
   
  

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

O
th

er
‐

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 p

la
n 

fid
uc

ia
ry

 n
et

 p
os

iti
on

(5
17

,6
76

)
   
   
   
    

31
7,
38

8
   
   
   
   
 

2,
21

6,
23

5
   
   
   
 

1,
68

1,
61

1
   
   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

P
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 -

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
15

,8
57

,1
88

   
   
 

15
,5
39

,8
00

   
   
 

13
,3
23

,5
65

   
   
 

11
,6
41

,9
54

   
   
 

‐
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

P
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 -

 e
nd

in
g

15
,3
39

,5
12

$ 
   
 

15
,8
57

,1
88

$ 
   
 

15
,5
39

,8
00

$ 
   
 

13
,3
23

,5
65

$ 
   
 

11
,6
41

,9
54

$ 
   
 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 -

 e
nd

in
g

10
,2
43

,5
16

$ 
   
 

5,
81

3,
34

8
$ 
   
   

5,
26

3,
35

1
$ 
   
   

5,
59

4,
33

8
$ 
   
   

6,
09

4,
89

2
$ 
   
   

59
.9
6%

73
.1
7%

74
.7
0%

70
.4
3%

65
.6
4%

C
ov

er
ed

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
5,
86

0,
71

5
$ 
   
   

4,
26

3,
36

6
$ 
   
   

5,
22

6,
29

7
$ 
   
   

5,
21

4,
74

6
$ 
   
   

5,
09

2,
69

0
$ 
   
   

17
4.
78

%
13

6.
36

%
10

0.
71

%
10

7.
28

%
11

9.
68

%

N
ot

es
 to

 S
ch

ed
ul

e:
1 2

A
ss

um
ed

 d
is

co
un

t r
at

e 
w

as
 lo

w
er

ed
 to

 r
ef

le
ct

 m
or

e 
co

ns
er

va
tiv

e 
as

se
t a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 g
iv

en
 c

lo
su

re
 to

 n
ew

 e
nt

ra
nt

s.

T
hi

s 
sc

he
du

le
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 s

ho
w

 a
 1

0-
ye

ar
 tr

en
d 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

ne
t p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, u
nt

il 
a 

fu
ll 

10
-y

ea
r 

tr
en

d
 is

 c
om

pi
le

d,
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

ill
 

on
ly

 b
e 

pr
es

en
te

d 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

ye
ar

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 it

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
C

h
an

g
es

 in
 t

h
e 

N
et

 P
en

si
o

n
 L

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 R

el
at

ed
 R

at
io

s
L

T
D

 S
al

ar
ie

d
 E

m
p

lo
ye

es
' R

et
ir

em
en

t 
P

la
n

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

1

P
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

to
ta

l p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f
co

ve
re

d-
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll

Page 61



20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

20
12

20
11

20
10

20
09

20
08

20
07

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

1,
17

5,
00

0
$ 

   
  

 
1,
20

5,
40

0
$ 
   
 

1,
15

7,
45

0
$ 
   
  

1,
15

6,
12

2
$ 
   
  

93
1,
96

2
$ 
   
   
  

94
9,
38

5
$ 
   
  

91
8,
39

1
$ 
   
  

91
7,
96

7
$ 
   
   
  

84
6,
48

0
$ 
   
  

78
4,
35

5
$ 
   
  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
de

te
rm

in
ed

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
   

   
   

 1
,1

74
,3

09
 

1,
33

3,
24

1
   
   
 

1,
16

1,
60

9
   
   
  

1,
15

6,
12

7
   
   
  

1,
02

6,
58

7
   
   
  

94
9,
69

8
   
   
  

91
8,
39

1
   
   
  

1,
14

2,
96

7
   
   
  

84
6,
48

0
   
   
  

78
4,
35

5
   
   
  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
de

fic
ie

nc
y 

(e
xc

es
s)

69
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1
27

,8
41

)
$ 
   
   

(4
,1
59

)
$ 
   
   
   
  

(5
)

$ 
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

(9
4,
62

5)
$ 
   
   
   

(3
13

)
$ 
   
   
   
   

‐
$ 
   
   
   
   
  

(2
25

,0
00

)
$ 
   
   
 

‐
$ 
   
   
   
   
  

‐
$ 
   
   
   
   
  

C
ov

er
ed

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
5,

86
0,

71
5

$ 
   

  
 

4,
26

3,
36

6
$ 
   
 

5,
22

6,
29

7
$ 
   
  

5,
21

4,
74

6
$ 
   
  

5,
09

2,
69

0
$ 
   
  

5,
18

7,
89

4
$ 
  

5,
46

3,
29

2
$ 
  

5,
46

3,
58

9
$ 
   
  

5,
13

0,
17

3
$ 
  

4,
77

4,
02

7
$ 
  

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ov

er
ed

-
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
31

%
31

.2
7%

22
.2
3%

22
.1
7%

20
.1
6%

18
.3
1%

16
.8
1%

20
.9
2%

16
.5
0%

16
.4
3%

N
o

te
s 

to
 S

ch
ed

u
le

:

V
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
7/

1/
20

13
7/

1/
20

13
7/

1/
20

11
7/

1/
20

11
7/

1/
20

09
7/

1/
20

09
7/

1/
20

07
7/

1/
20

07
7/

1/
20

05
7/

1/
20

05

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

at
e 

of
 r

et
ur

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n
7.

25
%

7.
25

%
7.
50

%
7.
50

%
7.
50

%
7.
50

%
7.
50

%
7.
50

%
7.
50

%
7.
50

%

M
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:

A
ct

ua
ria

l c
os

t m
et

ho
d

In
di

vi
du

al
 e

nt
ry

 a
ge

 n
or

m
al

, l
ev

el
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
ay

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
m

et
ho

d
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
1:

  C
lo

se
d 

20
-y

ea
r 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n,

 le
ve

l d
ol

la
r

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
00

7:
  L

ay
er

ed
 2

0-
ye

ar
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
ns

, l
ev

el
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
ay

T
hr

ou
gh

 J
ul

y 
1,

 2
00

5:
  O

pe
n 

20
-y

ea
r 

am
or

tiz
at

io
n,

 le
ve

l p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay

A
ss

et
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
01

1:
  M

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 o

f a
ss

et
s

T
hr

ou
gh

 J
ul

y 
1,

 2
00

9:
  M

ar
ke

t v
al

ue
 g

ai
ns

 a
nd

 lo
ss

es
 a

re
 s

m
oo

th
ed

 o
ve

r 
th

re
e 

ye
ar

s,
 w

ith
 r

es
ul

t n
ot

 le
ss

 th
an

 8
0%

 o
r 

gr
ea

te
r 

th
an

 1
20

%
 o

f m
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

M
or

ta
lit

y
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
1:

  R
P

-2
00

0 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

H
ea

lth
y 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
T

ab
le

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 u

si
ng

 S
ca

le
 A

A
 to

 2
01

8 
fo

r 
re

tir
ee

s 
an

d 
20

26
 fo

r 
ot

he
rs

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ju

ly
 1

, 2
00

3:
  R

P
-2

00
0 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
H

ea
lth

y 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

T
ab

le

In
fla

tio
n

3%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

S
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ju
ly

 1
, 2

01
1:

  A
ge

-b
as

ed
, w

ith
 a

n 
ul

tim
at

e 
ra

te
 o

f 3
.5

%
 p

er
 y

ea
r 

at
 a

ge
s 

50
+

T
hr

ou
gh

 J
ul

y 
1,

 2
00

9:
  G

en
er

al
ly

 5
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
ye

r 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
L

T
D

 S
al

ar
ie

d
 E

m
p

lo
ye

es
' R

et
ir

em
en

t 
P

la
n

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

Page 62



20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

T
ot

al
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
S

er
vi

ce
 c

os
t

79
4,

15
5

$ 
   

   
 

85
3,

01
8

$ 
   

   
82

8,
17

3
$ 

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
In

te
re

st
2,

49
5,

72
2

   
   

 
2,

42
4,

05
7

   
   

2,
32

6,
82

8
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f b

en
ef

it 
te

rm
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

6,
34

1
   

   
  

 
2

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

D
iff

er
en

ce
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 a
nd

 a
ct

ua
l e

xp
er

ie
nc

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

(6
46

,1
34

)
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ha

ng
es

 o
f a

ss
um

pt
io

ns
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
B

en
ef

it 
pa

ym
en

ts
(1

,9
63

,7
37

)
   

  
(1

,9
16

,1
28

)
   

  
(1

,7
61

,3
97

)
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 to

ta
l p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
1,

32
6,

14
0

   
   

 
1,

07
1,

15
4

   
   

1,
39

3,
60

4
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

T
ot

al
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 -

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
34

,6
11

,4
69

   
  

33
,5

40
,3

15
   

 
32

,1
46

,7
11

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
T

ot
al

 p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

 -
 e

nd
in

g
35

,9
37

,6
09

$ 
  

34
,6

11
,4

69
$ 

 
33

,5
40

,3
15

$ 
 

32
,1

46
,7

11
$ 

 

P
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
E

m
pl

oy
er

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
2,

30
9,

00
3

$ 
   

 
2,

22
2,

58
5

$ 
   

2,
24

8,
15

9
$ 

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

N
et

 in
ve

st
m

en
t i

nc
om

e
(5

77
,6

24
)

   
   

  
1,

00
8,

69
3

   
   

2,
49

8,
57

0
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

B
en

ef
it 

pa
ym

en
ts

(1
,9

63
,7

37
)

   
  

(1
,9

16
,1

28
)

   
  

(1
,7

61
,3

97
)

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
ex

pe
ns

e
(7

0,
77

9)
   

   
   

 
(1

15
,3

03
)

   
   

  
(8

2,
47

8)
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

O
th

er
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
N

et
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 p
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
(3

03
,1

37
)

   
   

  
1,

19
9,

84
7

   
   

2,
90

2,
85

4
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

P
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 -

 b
eg

in
ni

ng
22

,9
26

,4
24

   
  

21
,7

26
,5

77
   

 
18

,8
23

,7
23

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
P

la
n 

fid
uc

ia
ry

 n
et

 p
os

iti
on

 -
 e

nd
in

g
22

,6
23

,2
87

$ 
  

22
,9

26
,4

24
$ 

 
21

,7
26

,5
77

$ 
 

18
,8

23
,7

23
$ 

 

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 -

 e
nd

in
g

13
,3

14
,3

22
$ 

  
11

,6
85

,0
45

$ 
 

11
,8

13
,7

38
$ 

 
13

,3
22

,9
88

$ 
 

62
.9

5%
66

.2
4%

64
.7

8%
58

.5
6%

C
ov

er
ed

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
11

,3
44

,3
40

$ 
  

10
,5

12
,6

85
$ 

 
10

,5
30

,8
97

$ 
 

10
,4

49
,9

69
$ 

 

11
7.

37
%

11
1.

15
%

11
2.

18
%

12
7.

49
%

N
ot

es
 to

 S
ch

ed
ul

e:
1 2

A
 n

ew
 c

ol
le

ct
iv

e 
ba

rg
ai

ni
ng

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t i

nc
re

as
ed

 th
e 

be
ne

fit
 m

ul
tip

lie
r.

T
hi

s 
sc

he
du

le
 is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 s

ho
w

 a
 1

0-
ye

ar
 tr

en
d 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 th
e 

ne
t p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, u
nt

il 
a 

fu
ll 

10
-y

ea
r 

tr
en

d
 is

 
co

m
pi

le
d,

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

ye
ar

s 
in

 w
hi

ch
 it

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
C

h
an

g
es

 in
 t

h
e 

N
et

 P
en

si
o

n
 L

ia
b

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 R

el
at

ed
 R

at
io

s
L

T
D

 a
n

d
 A

m
al

g
am

at
ed

 T
ra

n
si

t 
U

n
io

n
, L

o
ca

l N
o

. 7
57

, P
en

si
o

n
 T

ru
st

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

1

P
la

n 
fid

uc
ia

ry
 n

et
 p

os
iti

on
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

to
ta

l p
en

si
on

 li
ab

ili
ty

D
is

tr
ic

t's
 n

et
 p

en
si

on
 li

ab
ili

ty
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f
co

ve
re

d-
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll

Page 63



20
16

20
15

20
14

20
13

20
12

20
11

20
10

20
09

20
08

20
07

A
ct

ua
ria

lly
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n

2,
32

4,
00

0
$ 

   
 

2,
26

5,
34

6
$ 

  
 

2,
12

9,
52

2
$ 

  
 

2,
13

0,
94

5
$ 

  
 

1,
98

1,
45

5
$ 

  
 

2,
03

4,
03

6
$ 

  
 

1,
92

6,
99

2
$ 

  
 

1,
93

9,
87

0
$ 

  
 

1,
61

8,
64

2
$ 

  
 

1,
44

8,
98

5
$ 

  
 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 in

 r
el

at
io

n 
to

 th
e 

ac
tu

ar
ia

lly
de

te
rm

in
ed

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n
   

   
 2

,2
95

,3
80

 
2,

26
5,

34
6

   
  

 
2,

23
4,

62
7

   
  

 
2,

22
8,

85
6

   
  

 
2,

19
3,

79
0

   
  

 
2,

03
4,

03
7

   
  

 
1,

92
6,

99
2

   
  

 
2,

41
4,

87
0

   
  

 
1,

61
8,

64
2

   
  

 
1,

44
8,

98
5

   
  

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
de

fic
ie

nc
y 

(e
xc

es
s)

28
,6

20
$ 

   
   

  
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(1

05
,1

05
)

$ 
   

  
(9

7,
91

1)
$ 

   
   

 
(2

12
,3

35
)

$ 
   

  
(1

)
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  
(4

75
,0

00
)

$ 
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

  

C
ov

er
ed

-e
m

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
11

,3
44

,3
40

$ 
  

10
,8

02
,0

19
$ 

 
10

,6
25

,2
61

$ 
 

10
,6

29
,0

43
$ 

 
10

,2
88

,5
38

$ 
 

10
,9

98
,4

31
$ 

 
11

,7
24

,8
70

$ 
 

11
,1

71
,8

28
$ 

 
10

,9
53

,6
39

$ 
 

10
,4

19
,4

32
$ 

 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

s 
a 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ov

er
ed

-
em

pl
oy

ee
 p

ay
ro

ll
20

.2
3%

20
.9

7%
21

.0
3%

20
.9

7%
21

.3
2%

18
.4

9%
16

.4
4%

21
.6

2%
14

.7
8%

13
.9

1%

N
o

te
s 

to
 S

ch
ed

u
le

:

V
al

ua
tio

n 
da

te
1/

1/
20

14
1/

1/
20

14
1/

1/
20

12
1/

1/
20

12
1/

1/
20

10
1/

1/
20

10
1/

1/
20

08
1/

1/
20

08
1/

1/
20

06
1/

1/
20

06

In
ve

st
m

en
t r

at
e 

of
 r

et
ur

n 
as

su
m

pt
io

n
7.

25
%

7.
25

%
7.

25
%

7.
25

%
7.

50
%

7.
50

%
7.

50
%

7.
50

%
7.

50
%

7.
50

%

M
et

ho
ds

 a
nd

 a
ss

um
pt

io
ns

 u
se

d 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

ra
te

s:

A
ct

ua
ria

l c
os

t m
et

ho
d

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

4:
  I

nd
iv

id
ua

l e
nt

ry
 a

ge
 n

or
m

al
, l

ev
el

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 p

ay

T
hr

ou
gh

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
2:

  I
nd

iv
id

ua
l e

nt
ry

 a
ge

 n
or

m
al

, l
ev

el
 d

ol
la

r

A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
m

et
ho

d
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
4:

  L
ay

er
ed

 2
0-

ye
ar

 a
m

or
tiz

at
io

n,
 le

ve
l p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 p
ay

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
00

6:
  L

ay
er

ed
 2

0-
ye

ar
 a

m
or

tiz
at

io
n,

 le
ve

l d
ol

la
r

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
00

4:
  C

lo
se

d 
24

-y
ea

r 
am

or
tiz

at
io

n,
 le

ve
l d

ol
la

r

A
ss

et
 v

al
ua

tio
n 

m
et

ho
d

M
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 g
ai

ns
 a

nd
 lo

ss
es

 a
re

 s
m

oo
th

ed
 o

ve
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s,

 w
ith

 r
es

ul
t n

ot
 le

ss
 th

an
 8

0%
 o

r 
gr

ea
te

r 
th

a
n 

12
0%

 o
f m

ar
ke

t v
al

ue

M
or

ta
lit

y
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
2:

  R
P

-2
00

0 
C

om
bi

ne
d 

H
ea

lth
y 

M
or

ta
lit

y 
T

ab
le

 w
ith

 B
lu

e 
C

ol
la

r 
A

dj
us

tm
en

t, 
pr

oj
ec

te
d 

us
in

g 
S

ca
le

 A
A

 to
 2

01
5

E
ffe

ct
iv

e 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
1,

 2
01

0:
  R

P
-2

00
0 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
H

ea
lth

y 
M

or
ta

lit
y 

T
ab

le
 w

ith
 B

lu
e 

C
ol

la
r 

A
dj

us
tm

en
t, 

pr
oj

ec
te

d 
us

in
g 

S
ca

le
 A

A
 to

 2
01

0

T
hr

ou
gh

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

00
8:

  1
99

4 
U

ni
ns

ur
ed

 P
en

si
on

er
 M

or
ta

lit
y

In
fla

tio
n

3%
 p

er
 y

ea
r

S
al

ar
y 

in
cr

ea
se

s
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
4:

  3
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r

T
hr

ou
gh

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
2:

 N
/A

F
ut

ur
e 

be
ne

fit
 r

at
e 

in
cr

ea
se

s
E

ffe
ct

iv
e 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

1,
 2

01
4:

  3
%

 p
er

 y
ea

r

T
hr

ou
gh

 J
an

ua
ry

 1
, 2

01
2:

 N
/A

S
ch

ed
u

le
 o

f 
E

m
p

lo
ye

r 
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s
L

T
D

 a
n

d
 A

m
al

g
am

at
ed

 T
ra

n
si

t 
U

n
io

n
, L

o
ca

l N
o

. 7
57

, P
en

si
o

n
 T

ru
st

L
as

t 
10

 F
is

ca
l Y

ea
rs

Page 64



Other Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Funding Progress

 Actuarial 

Valuation 

Date 

 Actuarial Value 

of Assets 

 Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability 

 Unfunded 

Actuarial 

Accrued 

Liability 

 Funded 

Ratio 

 Covered Payroll 

(Previous 

26 payrolls) 

 Unfunded 

Actuarial 

Liability as a 

Percentage of 

Covered 

Payroll 

1/1/2016 -                  7,442,049$     7,442,049$     0.0% 17,205,055        43.3%

1/1/2014 -                  7,789,243       7,789,243       0.0% 16,745,100        46.5%

1/1/2012 -                  7,210,300       7,210,300       0.0% 15,381,200        46.9%

1/1/2010 -                  6,584,300       6,584,300       0.0% 16,783,500        39.2%

Schedule of OPEB Funding Progress
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General Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual on a Non-GAAP Budget Basis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 

Variance 

Budget as Favorable 

Original Budget Amended Actual (unfavorable) 

$ 7,264,500 $ 7,264,500 $ 7,119,850 $ (144,650) 
152,000 152,000 243,928 91,928 
437,000 437,000 443,887 6,887 

30,100,200 30,100,200 34,394,558 4,294,358 
1,680,000 1,680,000 1,902,866 222,866 

200,000 200,000 400,795 200,795 
5,050,000 5,050,000 4,736,708 (313,292) 

- - 20,250 20,250 
253,400 253,400 238,853 (14,547) 
48,000 48,000 99,207 51,207 
15,000 15,000 19,199 4,199 

45,200,100 45,200,100 49,620,101 4,420,001 

31,876,600 31,876,600 30,496,088 1,380,512 
9,598,200 9,598,200 7,877,087 1,721,113 
1,108,300 1,108,300 937,038 171,262 

2,586,900 2,586,900 1,578,796 1,008,104 
195,000 440,000 657,537 (217,537) 

1,667,600 1,667,600 1,667,600 - 
1,000,000 755,000 - 755,000 

14,075,700 14,075,700 - 14,075,700 
1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 

63,108,300 63,108,300 43,214,146 19,894,154 

(17,908,200) (17,908,200) 6,405,955 24,314,155 

17,908,200 17,908,200 27,197,738 9,289,538 

$ - $ - $ 33,603,693 $ 33,603,693 

Revenues 

Passenger fares 
Special services 
Advertising 
Employer payroll tax 
Self-employment tax 
State payroll assessment 
Federal assistance 
State assistance 
Local assistance 
Miscellaneous 
Interest 
Sale of assets 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Personnel services 
Materials and services 
Insurance 

Other uses 
Transfer to Accessible Services Fund 
Transfer to Medicaid Fund 
Transfer to Capital Projects Fund 
Operating contingency 
Working capital contingency 
Self-insurance contingency 

Total expenditures and other uses 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 
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Accessible Services Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual on a Non-GAAP Budget Basis 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 

Original Budget 

Budget as 

Amended Actual 

Variance 

Favorable 

(unfavorable) 

$ 362,200 $ 362,200 $ 349,938 $ (12,262) 
2,697,400 2,782,600 2,865,104 82,504 
1,076,300 1,076,300 1,069,724 (6,576) 

123,200 123,200 123,398 198 

2,586,900 2,586,900 1,578,796 (1,008,104) 

6,846,000 6,931,200 5,986,960 (944,240) 

5,823,800 5,823,800 5,078,977 744,823 
144,400 144,400 112,415 31,985 
99,900 99,900 112,030 (12,130) 

6,068,100 6,068,100 5,303,422 764,678 

124,900 124,900 127,503 (2,603) 
193,800 193,800 186,635 7,165 
243,800 243,800 211,660 32,140 

562,500 562,500 525,798 36,702 

175,000 175,000 113,971 61,029 
5,300 5,300 3,602 1,698 

20,300 20,300 8,515 11,785 
100,000 100,000 75,599 24,401 

300,600 300,600 201,687 98,913 

130,000 130,000 - 130,000 

7,061,200 7,061,200 6,030,907 1,030,293 

(215,200) (130,000) (43,947) 86,053 

215,200 130,000 212,328 82,328 

$ - $ - $ 168,381 $ 168,381 

Revenues 

Passenger fares 
Federal assistance 
State assistance 
Local assistance 

Other sources 
Transfer from General Fund 

Total revenues and other sources 

Expenditures 

Eugene-Springfield services 
ADA RideSource 
Transit training and hosts 
Special transportation 

Total Eugene-Springfield services 

Rural Lane County services 
South Lane 
Florence 
Oakridge 

Total rural Lane County services 

Other services 
Mobility management 
Crucial connections 
Veterans transportation 
Lane County coordination 

Total other services 

Other uses 
Operating contingency 

Total expenditures and other uses 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 
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Medicaid Fund 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Budget and Actual on a Non-GAAP Budget Basis 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 

Variance 

Budget as Favorable 

Original Budget Amended Actual (unfavorable) 

Revenues 

Medicaid nonemergency medical transportation (NEMT) 
Medicaid waivered transportation 

Other sources 
Transfer from General Fund 

Total revenues and other sources 

Expenditures 

Medicaid nonemergency medical transportation (NEMT) 
Services 
Mobility management 
Program administration 

Total Medicaid NEW 

Medicaid waivered transportation 
Services 
Mobility management 
Program administration 
Grant program match requirements 

Total Medicaid waivered transportation 

Other uses 
Operating contingency 

Total expenditures and other uses 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 

$ 8,578,000 $ 9,483,000 $ 8,945,762 $ (537,238) 
638,600 638,600 761,426 122,826 

195,000 440,000 657,527 217,527 

9,411,600 10,561,600 10,364,715 (196,885) 

7,197,500 8,347,500 8,189,997 157,503 
123,300 123,300 68,537 54,763 

1,257,200 1,257,200 1,557,094 (299,894) 

8,578,000 9,728,000 9,815,628 (87,628) 

608,600 608,600 695,754 (87,154) 
38,600 38,600 35,366 3,234 
4,200 4,200 4,293 (93) 

182,200 182,200 186,361 (4,161) 

833,600 833,600 921,774 (88,174) 

134,200 - - - 

9,545,800 10,561,600 10,737,402 (175,802) 

(134,200) (372,687) (372,687) 

134,200 - 227,945 227,945 

$ - $ - $ (144,742) $ (144,742) 
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Capital Projects Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Budget and Actual on a Non-GAAP Budget Basis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 

Variance 

Budget as Favorable 

Original Budget Amended Actual (unfavorable) 

$ 78,379,700 $ 78,379,700 $ 35,863,853 $ (42,515,847) 
15,483,000 15,483,000 5,374,812 (10,108,188) 

- - 56,065 56,065 

1,667,600 1,667,600 1,667, 600 

95,530,300 95,530,300 42,962,330 (52,567,970) 

72,740,000 72,740,000 41,210,027 31,529,973 
- - 21,780 (21,780) 

200,000 200,000 233,024 (33,024) 
1,650,000 1,650,000 720,088 929,912 

74,590,000 74,590,000 42,184,919 32,405,081 

- - 63,877 (63,877) 
6,930,000 6,930,000 39,070 6,890,930 

- - 880,615 (880,615) 
100,000 100,000 128,416 (28,416) 

2,421,800 2,421,800 1,730,838 690,962 
5,145,600 5,145,600 1,171,488 3,974,112 

698,000 698,000 - 698,000 
715,000 715,000 1,006,790 (291,790) 
439,700 439,700 193,418 246,282 

75,000 75,000 17,723 57,277 
816,600 816,600 43,350 773,250 

17,341,700 17,341,700 5,275,585 12,066,115 

91,931,700 91,931,700 47,460,504 44,471,196 

3,598,600 3,598,600 (4,498,174) (8,096,774) 

5,356,800 5,356,800 1,768,386 (3,588,414) 

$ 8,955,400 $ 8,955,400 $ (2,729,788) L (11,685,188) 

Revenues 

Federal assistance 
State assistance 
Local assistance 
Miscellaneous 

Other sources 
Transfer from General Fund 

Total revenues and other sources 

Expenditures 
Frequent transit network 

West Eugene EmX extension 
Main Street / McVay transit study 
MovingAhead 
Northwest Eugene/LCC transit study 

Total frequent transit network 

Other capital outlay 
Land 
Revenue vehicles - fixed route 
Revenue vehicles - accessible services 
Support vehicles 
Stations, shelters, and facilities 
Computer hardware and software 
Intelligent transportation systems 
Transit security projects 
Communications equipment 
Shop equipment 
Miscellaneous equipment 

Total other capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 

Fund balance, end of year 
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Reconciliation of Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures 
on a Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis to 

Changes in Net Position on a GAAP Basis 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 
General Fund $ 6,405,955 
Accessible Services Fund (43,947) 
Medicaid Fund (372,687) 
Capital Projects Fund (4,498,174) 

Total excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 1,491,147 

Reconciling items 
Depreciation (11,129,702) 
Acquisition of capital assets 46,158,871 
OPEB expense (395,154) 
Pension contributions in excess of pension expense (971,654) 
Compensated absences accrual 594,499 
Insurance reserve accrual 56,145 

Loss on disposal of assets 6,644 
Proceeds from disposal of assets (19,199) 

Total reconciling items 34,300,450 

Change in net position on a GAAP basis $ 35,791,597 
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STATISTICAL SECTION 

 
This part of the Lane Transit District’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 

information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note 

disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the District’s overall financial 

health. 

 

 

Contents 

  

Financial Trend Information  

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 

how the District’s financial performance and well-being have changed 

over time. 

 

  

Demographic and Economic Information  

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 

reader understand the environment within which the District’s financial 

activities take place. 

 

  

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the 

reader understand how the information in the District’s financial report 

relates to the services the District provides and the activities it performs.  

 

 

 

Sources:  Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the 

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 
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Financial Trend Information 
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Outstanding at 
June 30

2016 -$                

2015 -                  

2014 -                  

2013 -                  

2012 -                  

2011 -                  

2010 -                  

2009 -                  

2008 3,000,000       

2007 3,000,000       

Total Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Years
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Percentage of Percentage of
Lane County Lane County

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

PeaceHealth Corp 5,500         1 3.7% 4,300         1 2.7%

University of Oregon 5,479         2 3.7% 3,676         2 2.3%

U.S. Government 1,669         3 1.1% 1,800         5 1.1%

State of Oregon 1,656         4 1.1% 1,452         4 0.9%

City of Eugene 1,394         5 0.9% 1,786         6 1.1%

Lane County 1,369         6 0.9% 1,162         8 0.7%

Springfield School District 1,242         7 0.8% 1,100         9 0.7%

Eugene 4J School District 1,198         8 0.8% 2,025         4 1.3%

Lane Community College 943            9 0.6% 2,531         3 1.6%

Mckenzie-Willamette Med Ctr 880            10 0.6% 750            10 0.5%

21,330       14.4% 20,582       13.1%

Total Employees 147,703     1 156,800     

1Per Bureau of Labor Statistics, total nonfarm employement (January)

Source:  Eugene Chamber of Commerce, Oregon Employment Department

Principal Employers of Lane County
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2016 2007
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Lane Transit District Personal Per Capita Unemployment
Fiscal Year Population (a) Population (c) Income (,000) (c) Income (c) Rate (d)

2007 286,400 344,844 11,499,206         33,346       5.0%

2008 289,300 348,176 11,893,365         34,159       5.8%

2009 291,600 350,850 11,626,054         33,137       12.7%

2010 296,243 351,848 11,710,885         33,284       11.0%

2011 296,300 353,495 12,261,473         34,686       9.6%

2012 297,500 354,506 12,784,129         36,062       8.8%

2013 298,300 356,212 13,047,961         36,630       8.1%

2014 300,000 358,805 13,575,594         37,867       7.0%

2015 302,200 362,150 14,468,971         39,871       6.1%

2016 305,350 365,940 NA NA 5.5%

Notes

Source
c.  Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce.
d.  Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor.  Rates presented are annualized for the calendar year.

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Lane County, Oregon

a.  District population in census years determined by Lane Council of Governments from U.S. Census Bureau      
     census tract information.  Intervening years are an estimate using information from the Census and the
     annual populaton estimates published by the Population Research Center at Portland State University.
b.  Reported population of communities within District boundaries of Eugene, Springfield, Cottage Grove, 
     Creswell, Veneta, Junction City, and Lowell.

Last Ten Years
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Total Average
Units Count Percent in Millions Percent Pay

Natural Resources 235         2,143       1.5% 85$          1.4% 39,693$     

Construction 909         5,956       4.1% 286$        4.8% 47,984$     

Manufacturing 553         13,135     8.9% 668$        11.1% 50,869$     

Trade 2,010      29,113     19.8% 1,002$     16.7% 34,415$     

Service

  Information 170         3,228       2.2% 213$        3.6% 66,042$     

  Financial Activities 1,059      6,351       4.3% 344$        5.7% 54,219$     

  Professional & Business Services 1,627      15,984     10.9% 664$        11.1% 41,511$     

  Education & Health Services 1,334      23,859     16.3% 1,114$     18.6% 46,689$     

  Leisure & Hospitality 1,085      16,207     11.0% 268$        4.5% 16,535$     

  Other Services 2,030      6,165       4.2% 155$        2.6% 25,069$     

  Total Service 7,305      71,794     48.9% 2,758$     46.1% 38,409$     

  Unclassified/other 18           11            

Government 409         24,642     16.8% 1,194$     19.9% 48,453$     

Total 2016 Covered Employment 11,439 146,794 100% 5,993$     100.0% 40,826$     

Source:  Oregon Employment Department

Lane County 2015 Covered Payroll

2015 Covered Employment and Wages

Summary Report for Lane County

Covered Employment Covered Payroll

Natural Resources
Construction

Manufacturing

Trade

Information

Financial Activities

Professional & Business   
Services

Education & Health Services

Leisure & Hospitality

Other Services

Government

Services
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Source:  Oregon Employment Department

Inflation Adjusted Annual Average Wages 
(2015 Dollars)

U.S
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Fiscal Year
Operating* 
Revenues

Operating* 
Expenses

Revenue 
Margin Revenue Hours

Percent 
Change

Operating 
Revenue / 

Service Hour
Percent 
Change

Operating 
Expenses / 

Revenue Hour
Percent 
Change

2015-16 7,807,665$    40,932,868$    19.1% 268,010 5.2% $29.13 -6.0% $152.73 1.0%

2014-15 7,893,869      38,541,017      20.5% 254,779 3.0% 30.98 -0.9% 151.27 2.0%

2013-14 7,733,140      36,660,628      21.1% 247,286 0.0% 31.27 1.2% 148.25 2.4%

2012-13 7,640,918      35,813,713      21.3% 247,303 -0.1% 30.90 0.5% 144.82 4.1%

2011-12 7,608,840      34,411,349      22.1% 247,480 0.4% 30.75 -7.0% 139.05 1.2%

2010-11 8,150,969      33,880,028      24.1% 246,556 -11.7% 33.06 16.4% 137.41 10.3%

2009-10 7,933,611      34,792,955      22.8% 279,241 -2.6% 28.41 5.4% 124.60 7.8%

2008-09 7,723,787      33,118,646      23.3% 286,654 0.1% 26.94 5.3% 115.54 3.5%

2007-08 7,320,990      31,952,517      22.9% 286,226 2.3% 25.58 14.9% 111.63 5.8%

2006-07 6,226,293      29,498,214      21.1% 279,688 7.6% 22.26 -2.9% 105.47 1.7%

Fiscal Year Employees
Revenue Hours 

/ Employees
Percent 
Change

Passenger 
Fares

Passenger 
Boardings

Passenger 
Fares / 

Boarding

Operating 
Expenses / 
Boarding

Percent 
Change

Revenue 
Hours / 

Trip
2015-16 316 848.13 3.9% 7,141,779$     10,250,227 0.70 3.99 10.3% 0.026

2014-15 312 816.60 3.4% 7,200,332       10,644,718 0.68 3.62 10.5% 0.024

2013-14 313 790.05 -1.0% 6,948,609       11,192,854 0.62 3.28 3.1% 0.022

2012-13 310 797.75 -2.3% 6,914,308       11,276,282 0.61 3.18 5.8% 0.022

2011-12 303 816.77 -1.3% 6,738,397       11,463,124 0.59 3.00 -0.3% 0.022

2010-11 298 827.37 -7.0% 7,393,034       11,253,628 0.66 3.01 -1.8% 0.022

2009-10 314 889.30 4.2% 7,032,027       11,349,579 0.62 3.07 8.5% 0.025

2008-09 336 853.14 1.9% 6,602,497       11,718,189 0.56 2.83 0.9% 0.024

2007-08 342 836.92 0.8% 6,122,561       11,406,316 0.54 2.80 -7.3% 0.025

2006-07 337 829.93 0.2% 5,213,706       9,757,984 0.53 3.02 4.4% 0.029

Fiscal Year Miles
Operating 

Expenses / Mile
Percent 
Change

Fleet 
Maintenance 

Costs

Fleet 
Maintenance 
Cost / Mile

Percent 
Change Fuel Cost

Fuel Cost / 
Mile

Percent 
Change

2015-16 3,750,517 10.914 0.7% 5,683,792$     1.515 -6.2% 2,086,824$  0.556 -2.6%

2014-15 3,554,759 10.842 4.5% 5,740,550       1.615 10.1% 2,030,066    0.571 -21.8%

2013-14 3,534,864 10.371 1.7% 5,186,756       1.467 3.0% 2,580,822    0.730 -1.4%

2012-13 3,512,473 10.196 5.2% 5,002,973       1.424 -1.5% 2,601,015    0.741 -7.8%

2011-12 3,549,802 9.694 2.6% 5,134,802       1.447 3.0% 2,850,255    0.803 15.1%

2010-11 3,587,553 9.444 10.1% 5,040,041       1.405 11.7% 2,502,026    0.697 45.7%

2009-10 4,054,883 8.581 6.2% 5,100,175       1.258 6.5% 1,941,476    0.479 -9.3%

2008-09 4,097,838 8.082 3.1% 4,837,587       1.181 3.7% 2,162,213    0.528 -22.6%

2007-08 4,076,093 7.839 7.1% 4,638,977       1.138 7.1% 2,778,672    0.682 37.6%

2006-07 4,029,581 7.320 6.1% 4,281,047       1.062 0.2% 1,996,335    0.495 6.3%

*Excludes Accessible Services, depreciation, and OPEB expense

Operating Revenue & Cost Measurements - Fixed-Route System
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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Ridership, Service, and Productivity
Last Twenty Years

Boardings Service Productivity
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Fiscal Year
Revenue 

Hours
Percent 
Change

Passenger 
Boardings

Percent 
Change

System 
Productivity

Percent 
Change

Base Cash 
Fare

2015-16 268,010 5.2% 10,250,227 -3.7% 38.246 -8.46% 1.75$         

2014-15 254,779 2.7% 10,644,718 -4.9% 41.780 -7.36% 1.75           

2013-14 248,172 0.4% 11,192,854 -0.7% 45.101 -1.09% 1.75           

2012-13 247,303 -0.1% 11,276,282 -1.6% 45.597 -1.56% 1.75           

2011-12 247,480 0.4% 11,463,124 1.9% 46.319 1.48% 1.50           

2010-11 246,556 -11.7% 11,253,628 -0.8% 45.643 12.30% 1.50           

2009-10 279,241 -2.6% 11,349,579 -3.1% 40.644 -0.57% 1.50           

2008-09 286,654 0.1% 11,718,189 2.7% 40.879 2.58% 1.50           

2007-08 286,226 2.3% 11,406,316 16.9% 39.851 14.22% 1.25           

2006-07 279,688 7.6% 9,757,984 4.8% 34.889 -2.57% 1.25           

2005-06 259,985 -1.3% 9,309,528 11.5% 35.808 13.04% 1.25           

2004-05 263,537 -4.6% 8,348,313 1.7% 31.678 6.60% 1.25           

2003-04 276,207 16.1% 8,207,818 0.2% 29.716 -13.67% 1.25           

2002-03 237,949 -9.3% 8,190,436 -4.6% 34.421 5.18% 1.25           

2001-02 262,242 -4.0% 8,582,138 -0.5% 32.726 3.64% 1.25           

2000-01 273,102 -0.7% 8,623,496 6.9% 31.576 7.63% 1.00           

1999-00 274,939 2.6% 8,066,108 0.8% 29.338 -1.70% 1.00           

1998-99 267,986 2.2% 7,998,370 4.7% 29.846 2.49% 1.00           

1997-98 262,223 1.7% 7,635,934 -0.8% 29.120 -2.42% 1.00           

1996-97 257,821 3.8% 7,693,820 1.7% 29.842 -2.06% 0.80           

1995-96 248,365 1.5% 7,567,219 7.8% 30.468 6.22% 0.80           

Ridership, Fare, Service, and Productivity
Last Twenty One Years
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Ridership, Service, and Service Area Population
Last Twenty Years

Boardings Population Revenue Hours
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Ridership Trends by Month
For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015
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Fiscal Year
 Fare Box 

Cash 
Percentage 

Change

Ten-Ride 
Ticket Books 
and Agency 
Day Passes

Percentage 
Change Tokens

Percentage 
Change Monthly  Passes

Percentage 
Change

2015-16 2,043,958$  0.7% 361,792$      33.2% -$                  - 2,858,164$        26.7%

2014-15 2,029,943    1.1% 271,712        3.7% -                - 2,256,492          10.1%

2013-14 2,007,169    -3.6% 262,028        15.3% -                    - 2,049,093          2.0%

2012-13 2,081,984    0.5% 227,321        46.1% -                    - 2,008,581          9.1%

2011-12 2,072,448    12.3% 155,643        34.1% -                    - 1,841,167          4.0%

2010-11 1,845,360    -2.6% 116,097        - -                    -100.0% 1,770,098          12.2%

2009-10 1,894,748    7.0% -                    - 55                 -99.9% 1,578,238          5.3%

2008-09 1,770,345    13.9% -                    - 96,410          -64.9% 1,499,146          12.2%

2007-08 1,554,195    7.5% -                    - 274,558        22.5% 1,336,334          -29.5%

2006-07 1,446,082    4.1% -                    - 224,071        -0.1% 1,894,398          -1.3%

Fiscal Year

 Student 
Transit Pass 

Program 
Percentage 

Change  Group Pass 
Percentage 

Change
 Special 
Service 

Percentage 
Change

 Total 
Transportation 

Revenues 
Percentage 

Change
2015-16 -$                 - 2,565,681$   0.5% 243,928$      -21.2% 7,385,707$        2.5%

2014-15 -               - 2,642,185     0.5% 255,587        -21.2% 7,455,919          2.5%

2013-14 -                   - 2,630,319     1.3% 324,531        -26.1% 7,273,140          -1.1%

2012-13 -                   - 2,596,422     -2.7% 439,110        -25.4% 7,353,418          0.4%

2011-12 -                   -100.0% 2,669,139     12.1% 588,943        22.1% 7,327,340          -7.0%

2010-11 1,281,331    1.9% 2,380,148     3.4% 482,435        -23.9% 7,875,469          2.7%

2009-10 1,257,585    8.9% 2,301,401     10.6% 634,084        -17.7% 7,666,111          4.0%

2008-09 1,155,335    0.3% 2,081,261     15.3% 769,994        -11.2% 7,372,491          5.5%

2007-08 1,152,276    - 1,805,198     9.5% 867,501        25.0% 6,990,062          18.3%

2006-07 -                   - 1,649,155     6.6% 693,785        11.1% 5,907,491          3.6%

Transportation Revenues by Category
Last Ten Years
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June 30
 Cash Fare  

Adult Age - Adult
Cash Fare  

Youth Age - Youth
Cash Fare  

Senior Age - Senior
Cash Fare  
Reduced Age - Reduced

2016 1.75             19-64 0.85              6-18 $          free 65 + 0.85$            NA

2015 1.75             19-64 0.85              6-18 free 65 + 0.85              NA

2014 1.75             19-64 0.85              6-18 free 65 + 0.85              NA

2013 1.75             19-64 0.85              6-18 free 65 + 0.85              NA

2012 1.50             19-64 0.75              6-18 free 65 + 0.75              NA

2011 1.50             19-64 0.75              6-18 free 65 + 0.75              NA

2010 1.50             19-64 0.75              6-18 free 65 + 0.75              NA

2009 1.50             19-64 0.75              6-18 free 65 + 0.75              NA

2008 1.25             19-61 0.60              6-18 0.60                62-69 0.60              NA

2007 1.25             19-61 0.60              6-18 0.60                62-69 0.60              NA

June 30
 One-Month 
Adult Pass 

 One-Month 
Youth Pass 

 One-Month 
Senior Pass 

 One-Month 
Reduced 

Pass 
 Three-Month 

Adult Pass 
 Three-Month 
Youth Pass 

 Three-Month 
Senior Pass 

 Three-Month 
Reduced Pass 

2016 50.00$         25.00$       $          free 25.00$         135.00$          67.50$              $          free 67.50$              

2015 50.00           25.00         $          free 25.00           135.00            67.50                $          free 67.50                

2014 48.00           24.00         free 24.00           130.00            65.00             free 65.00                

2013 48.00           24.00         free 24.00           130.00            65.00             free 65.00                

2012 48.00           24.00         free 24.00           130.00            65.00             free 65.00                

2011 48.00           24.00         free 24.00           130.00            65.00             free 65.00                

2010 45.00           22.50         free 22.50           130.00            65.00             free 65.00                

2009 45.00           22.50         free 22.50           122.00            61.00             free 61.00                

2008 38.00           19.00         19.00            19.00           103.00            51.50             51.50            51.50                

2007 35.00           17.50         17.50            17.50           95.00              47.50             47.50            47.50                

June 30
RideSource  

Regular Fare
RideSource   
Escort Fare

RideSource   
Shopper Fare 
(Roundtrip)

RideSource   
Ten-Ride 

Ticket Book

Tokens 
Package of 5  

Adult

Ten-Ride 
Ticket Book 

Adult

Ten-Ride
Ticket Book 

Reduced
2016 3.50$           3.50$         2.00$            35.00$         $ discontinued 16.00$           8.00$            

2015 3.50             3.50           2.00              35.00           discontinued 16.00             8.00              

2014 3.00             3.00           2.00              30.00           discontinued 16.00             8.00              

2013 3.00             3.00           2.00              30.00           discontinued 16.00             8.00              

2012 3.00             3.00           2.00              30.00           discontinued NA NA 

2011 3.00             3.00           2.00              30.00           discontinued NA NA 

2010 3.00             3.00           2.00              30.00           discontinued NA NA 

2009 3.00             3.00           2.00              30.00           discontinued NA NA 

2008 2.50             2.50           2.00              20.00           5.50                NA NA 

2007 2.50             2.50           2.00              20.00           5.50                NA NA 

Fare Structure
Last Ten Years
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PAYROLL TAX REVENUE
Fiscal Year Amount
FY 1996-97 12,938,315   
FY 1997-98 14,187,312   
FY 1998-99 15,178,987   
FY 1999-00 16,040,086   
FY 2000-01 16,409,144   
FY 2001-02 16,121,110   
FY 2002-03 16,214,994   
FY 2003-04 17,138,342   
FY 2004-05 20,168,976   
FY 2005-06 21,416,021   
FY 2006-07 22,162,590   
FY 2007-08 23,303,571   
FY 2008-09 22,169,136   
FY 2009-10 21,424,079   
FY 2010-11 22,197,770   
FY 2011-12 23,047,471   
FY 2012-13 24,891,777   
FY 2013-14 25,374,737   
FY 2014-15 30,996,836   
FY 2015-16 34,394,558   

HISTORIC PAYROLL TAX RATE
Date Implemented Rate
January, 1 2016 0.71%
January 1, 2014 0.70%
January 1, 2013 0.69%
January 1, 2012 0.68%
January 1, 2011 0.67%
January 1, 2010 0.66%
January 1, 2009 0.65%
January 1, 2008 0.64%
January 1, 2007 0.62%
October 1, 1994 0.60%
January 1, 1992 0.56%
July 1, 1987 0.49%
October 1, 1983 0.50%
January 1, 1980 0.60%
January 1, 1979 0.50%
July 1, 1974 0.54%
July 1, 1973 0.47%
April 1, 1972 0.25%
April 1, 1971 0.30%

Comparative Payroll Tax Information
Last Twenty Years
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Miscellaneous Data 

June 30, 2016 
 
 

 
Date of creation of District 

 
November 23, 1970 

Form of government   Board of Directors with full-time General Manager 

Number of Board members 7 

Type of tax support - employer payroll tax 0.71 percent tax rate 

County in which the District operates Lane 

Square miles within the District boundaries 482.73 

Service area of District (based on 
  definitions contained in Americans with 
  Disabilities Act [ADA]) 

 
 

241.28 

Number of routes 34 

Population of District (2013 U.S. Census) 300,037 
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DISCLOSURES AND COMMENTS 
REQUIRED BY  

STATE MINIMUM STANDARDS 
 

Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-050 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for 
Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State in cooperation 
with the Oregon State Board of Accountancy, enumerate the financial statements, schedules, 
comments, and disclosures required in audit reports.  The required financial statements and 
schedules are set forth in preceding sections of this report.  Required comments and 
disclosures related to the audit of such statements and schedules are set forth following. 
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475 Cottage Street NE, Suite 200, Salem, Oregon 97301 
(503) 581-7788

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS 

Board of Directors 
Lane Transit District 
Springfield, Oregon 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, the basic financial statements of Lane Transit District (the District) as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated April 27, 2017   

Compliance 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in 
Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of 
Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.   

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and 
disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:  

 Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).

 Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).

 Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.

 Programs funded from outside sources.

 Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).

 Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the District was 
not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, 
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-
10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations
except for the following:
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 The District did not follow the provisions the public contracting standards as there was a project
valued greater than $150,000 that did not go through the public bidding process.

 Expenditures by the District exceeded appropriations, as detailed in the notes to the financial
statements.

 The District reported negative fund balances at June 30, 2016 in the Medicaid and Capital
Projects Funds.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal 
control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, 
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.   

There are findings listed in a separately issued report.  

Restriction on Use 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of 
the District and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these parties. 

GROVE, MUELLER & SWANK, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

By: 
Ryan T. Pasquarella, A Shareholder 
April 27, 2017 
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